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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained in this AniRegort on Form 10-K are forward-looking and congtitforward-looking statements within
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatioridR@ Act of 1995. In addition, from time to time w@ay publish forwardeoking statemen
relating to such matters as anticipated finanaafggmance, business prospects, technological derents, new products, research and
development activities and other aspects of owsgireand future business operations and similatensathat also constitute such forward-
looking statements. These statements involve kremvehunknown risks, uncertainties, and other fadttasmay cause our or our industry’s
actual results, levels of activity, performanceachievements to be materially different from amyfe results, levels of activity, performar
or achievements expressed or implied by such fahlaoking statements. Such factors include, amongrdtiings, unforeseen changes in
course of research and development activities mietinical trials; possible changes in cost andrigrof development and testing, capital
structure, and other financial items; changes pragches to medical treatment; introduction of peaducts by others; possible acquisitions
of other technologies, assets or businesses; p@saitions by customers, suppliers, strategic pastrpotential strategic partners, competitors
and regulatory authorities, as well as those listedier “Risk Factors” below and elsewhere in thisdal Report on Form 10-K. In some
cases, you can identify forward-looking statemdgtéerminology such as “expect”, “anticipate”, ‘lesate”, “plan”, “believe” and words of
similar import regarding the Company’s expectatidfmrward-looking statements are only predictidkstual events or results may differ
materially. Although we believe that our expectati@re based on reasonable assumptions withirothedb of our knowledge of our
industry, business and operations, we cannot gtesrdhat actual results will not differ materiafigm our expectations. In evaluating such
forward-looking statements, you should specificatiysider various factors, including the risks ioetll under “Risk Factors.” The discussion
of risks and uncertainties set forth in this AnnRabort on Form 10-K is not necessarily a compdetexhaustive list of all risks facing the
Company at any particular point in time. We opemata highly competitive, highly regulated and dipichanging environment and our
business is in a state of evolution. Thereforis, likely that new risks will emerge, and that tieure and elements of existing risks will
change, over time. It is not possible for managdrteepredict all such risk factors or changes timerer to assess either the impact of all such
risk factors on our business or the extent to which individual risk factor, combination of factps new or altered factors, may cause
results to differ materially from those containadany forward-looking statement. We disclaim aniigattion to revise or update any forward-
looking statement that may be made from time t@tity us or on our behalf.

GENERAL

Founded in 1982 as Cheung Laboratories, with awisf using thermotherapy to treat cancer and atlserases, Celsion Corporation
(“Celsion” or the “Company” or “we") is a biotechlogy company. The Company initially focused reshafforts on the treatment of breast
cancer. Celsion’s core business activity is theetijpment of products to treat cancer and otheadisgand to commercialize those products
to generate a return on investment for its stoakdral through one of several means including (dihggbroducts directly to end users;

(b) selling products through a distributor (ashis tase with its Prolieve product); and (c) licagsts technology to third parties and
generating income through royalties and milestangrents.

In 2001, the Company narrowed its focus and comatdt its resources on commercializing a secondrgéon treatment system for Benign
Prostatic Hyperplasia (BPH) with the ultimate goBlsing the funds generated from that producteteetbp cancer treatment drugs based
heat activated liposome technology licensed frorkéDuniversity.
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The Prolieve Thermodilatation system for the treattvof BPH was approved by the Food and Drug Adstriaion (“FDA”) in 2004 and is
being marketed by Celsion’s exclusive distributast®n Scientific Corporation (“Boston ScientificBSC”) Boston Scientific also has a five
year (expiring in February 2009) option to purchémeProlieve assets and technology for $60 millidre funds generated to date from s.
of Prolieve have been used in the developmenteoCtbmpany’s first drug, ThermoDox. Celsion is cotieengaged in three Phase |, dose
escalation studies, in the treatment of primargrligancer and in the treatment of recurrent chalitbseast cancer.

In 2005, the Company made a strategic decisiomsttmdtinue the development of new thermotherapycdsvand has since disposed of its
device development business. In November 2005Ctmpany reached an agreement to sell its heasetigene technology to TCT, Inc,
and in January 2006, the Company sold its breastecdreatment device to its founder and formee€CBkecutive Officer, Dr. Augustine
Cheung.

The Company intends to focus on developing drugh® treatment of various cancer indications. fitst of these development projects
involves ThermoDox, our proprietary heat activdtpdsome containing doxorubicin. The Company plandevelop ThermoDox for multip
cancer indications where it believes that ThermoBway enhance the therapeutic benefit offered bstiexj thermotherapy devices. For
certain indications the Company may seek licenpergners to share in the development and commizati@n costs. The Company will also
evaluate licensing products from third partiesdancer treatments involving novel drugs or drudveey systems to expand its development
pipeline.

Our principal offices are located at 10220-L Old@obia Road, Columbia, Maryland and our telephom@lpers are (410) 290-5490 and
(800) 262-0394. The Company’s website id www.celsiom

The Company makes available free of charge thrdaisghebsite, www.celsion.com, its annual reporffanm 10K, quarterly reports on For
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendmtmthose reports as soon as reasonably praetiatibr such material is electronically
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exatpa Commission. In addition, copies of our annapbrt on Form 10-K will be made
available free of charge upon written request. $B€ also maintains an internet site that contapsnts, proxy and information statements
and other information regarding issuers that féeiqgdic and other reports electronically with thec@rities and Exchange Commission. The
address of that site is www.sec.gov. The materiaur website is not a part of this Annual Reporform 10-K.

THERMODOX (DOXORUBICIN ENCAPSULATED IN HEAT-ACTIVAT ED LIPOSOME)

Conventional liposomes are manufactured lipid sphénat can carry drugs and delay their eliminabipthe body, allowing the drugs to
remain in the bloodstream for extended periodénoé tHowever, the currently available liposome ddegjvery products used to treat cancer
do not provide for active targeting of organ spedifimors.

A team of Duke University scientists has developedt-sensitive liposomes comprised of lipid molesuhat rapidly change structure when
heated to a specific temperature (40° to 42° @gtorg openings in the liposome allowing it to asle its drug rapidly.

In 1999, Celsion obtained an exclusive commerdaitibn license from Duke University to this propaist heat-sensitive liposome technology
for the delivery of a wide range of drugs. In parship with Duke University, Celsion has encapsdatoxorubicin, an approved and
frequently used cancer drug, in its investigatidredt-activated liposome product, ThermoDox. Calgiends to use various available
focused-heat technologies to provide localizedihgaif tumors to trigger the release of doxorubftom ThermoDox after intravenous
administration. As these liposomes circulate withia tumor tissue and tumor vasculature, the lpagplied heat causes the rapid release of
doxorubicin within the targeted tumor. Celsion beés that this approach can deliver greater coraténts of drug directly to the tumor,

while having the potential to improve conventiooaémotherapy.
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Animal studies have demonstrated that the intrareaministration of ThermoDox in combination witingeted heat to the tumor can
produce tumor tissue concentrations higher thanattisieved in the same experiments with traditi@malon-heat sensitive liposomal
doxorubicin formulations when given at the sameedas ThermoDox. Celsion is pursuing primary livaneer as its lead indication for
ThermoDox. The Company is also evaluating the pdigiof using ThermoDox or other chemotherapeaiients encapsulated in its heat
activated liposome to treat other cancers.

Liver Cancer Overview

Primary liver cancer (hepatocellular carcinoma @G is one of the most common and deadliest foritsuocer worldwide. It is estimated
that up to 90% of liver cancer patients will dighin five years of diagnosis. There are approxitye28,000 new cases per year of HCC ir
U.S. With the inclusion of liver metastases frothestcancers (e.g. colon, lung, breast, etc) tte¢ tmimber of cases of liver cancer in the U.S.
increases significantly.

Although the standard treatment for liver cancesuigyical excision of the tumor, 80 to 90% of pattseare ineligible for surgery at time of
diagnosis as early stage liver cancer generallyfdvasymptoms and when finally detected the tumeqdently is too large for surgery. There
are few alternative treatments, since radiationaye and chemotherapy are largely ineffective.tborors generally up to about two inches in
diameter, radiofrequency ablation (RFA) is a comiyarilized treatment approach which directly degs the tumor tissue through the
application of high temperatures by a probe insérito the core of the tumor.

Celsion’s Approach

While RFA uses extremely high temperatures (802 1T)(to ablate the tumor, it may fail to treat mitretasteses in the outer margins of
ablated tumors because temperatures in the peyiphey not be high enough to destroy the cances.datical recurrence can be a problem
especially for tumors greater than about one inaiameter. Celsion’s ThermoDox treatment apprasctesigned to utilize the ability of
RFA devices to ablate the center of the tumor wéiileultaneously thermally activating the ThermoDiprsome to release its encapsulated
doxorubicin to kill remaining viable cancer cellsdughout the heated region, including the tumdetadn margins. This treatment is intenc
to deliver the drug directly to those cancer ciilig survive RFA. This approach will also increttsdelivery of the drug at the desired tur
site while potentially reducing drug exposure dista the tumor site.

Liver Cancer Phase | Trial

A Phase | single dose escalation study is undemagh is investigating ThermoDox in combination lwiRFA for the treatment of liver
cancer. The study is currently being performedatNational Cancer Institute (NCI), which is pdrtiee National Institutes of Health (NIH)
and Queen Mary’s Hospital in Hong Kong. The Compiiegted its first patient on February 14, 2005 expects to complete treatment of
all patients in the Phase | study by the middI2@d7. The Company is currently working with the FE2finalize plans for a Phase Il study
for the treatment of primary liver cancer whicldpes to initiate in late 2007.

In February 2007, the Company initiated a Phaseséescalation study designed to investigate dicgtion of the current RFA/ThermoDox
treatment regimen including a single vial formwdatof ThermoDox and reducing the greatment prophylactic dosing. The study also &
multiple dosing in liver cancer patients. The stiglgurrently being performed at the Cleveland iClFroundation and at North Shore Long
Island Jewish Health System. The first patienhis study was treated during February 2007. Thidysis not expected to impact the timing
of the Phase Ill liver study discussed above[CC1].

Recurrent Chest Wall Breast Cancer Overview

Studies at Duke University and other centers haglizated that heat may improve the therapeutioadf non temperature sensitive
liposomal doxorubicin formulations in advanced lgegional breast cancer. Celsion, in collaboratidth Duke University, has decided to
explore the potential of ThermoDox to treat a pafiah of advanced breast cancer patients with tegienal chest wall disease or recurrent
chest wall breast cancer (RCW).

RCW cancer is a condition which afflicts patieritatthave undergone a mastectomy, surgery to remoa@acerous breast, and occurs in
about 15,000 patients annually in the United Stdthere is currently no generally effective theratreapproach for this condition with the
result that many of these patients die within tveang of the local recurrence of their breast cancer

3
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As in the liver cancer program, we are using a cencially available thermotherapy device to activEiermoDox at the desired target site
the case of RCW tumors, the heat source will bécaowave thermotherapy device which is designelaetat the target tissue to a temperature
adequate to activate ThermoDox but not ablateisisae as with RFA.

Breast Cancer Phase | Trial

Celsion has provided a research grant to Duke Wsityeand will provide clinical supplies of Thermokto support a Phase | multiple dose,
open label study of the safety and pharmacokin@ti€CW patients. Duke enrolled the first patianMay 2006 and expects to complete
enrollment in the study by the third quarter of 200

PROLIEVE THERMODILATATION SYSTEM
Focused Heat Treatment

Celsion’s minimally invasive transurethral microveasystem, the Prolieve Thermodilatation system,lines heat transmitted through a
transurethral microwave thermotherapy device wittspure applied by a unique balloon catheter tdyme a natural stent to reopen the
urethra. At the same time, the microwave appliedat kidls prostate cells outside the wall of thethra, creating space for the enlarged natural
opening.

It is a relatively painless, rapid outpatient prdwes, requiring no sedation, generally no post-aipez catheterization, and delivering rapid
symptomatic relief.

The procedure is eligible for Medicare/Medicaid amslirance reimbursement averaging $3,600. Theeh&wk minimally invasive
procedures is currently approximately $75 milliearowing rapidly. Management believes the po&tidir Prolieve could be greater than
$125 million.

As mentioned above, Celsion has granted Bostom&fadeexclusive marketing rights to the ProlievheéFmodilatation System. In addition,
Celsion has also granted Boston Scientific theoopttb purchase the assets and technology relatiRgalieve for a period of five years from
its launch (February 2004) for a price of $60 railli Boston Scientific has also loaned Celsion $AG@00 ($16,277,698 including accrued
interest at December 31, 2006), which can be appliminst the option purchase price for the PreliEvermodilatation System.

Marketing, Distribution and Supply

Celsion markets the Prolieve system through aruska Distribution Agreement with Boston Scienti@orporation, pursuant to which
Celsion granted Boston Scientific exclusive riglatsnarket and distribute Prolieve and its compompants for the treatment of BPH. Under
the terms of this agreement Boston Scientific markad distributes Prolieve in the United Statestzas a license to market and distribute
product worldwide, with the exception of Greateiir@h Mexico and Central and South America. Bostoierific, through its urology sales
force, launched the product in the United Statdseibruary 2004 targeting urology practices throughioe country. Trial of the system is
generated through the placement of control unitghiysician’s offices for an evaluation period & #nd of which the physician either
acquires the machine or returns it to Boston SifienSince approval in February 2004, Prolieve haen sold exclusively in the United St:
generating revenues of approximately $11,251,000,320,000 and $2,506,000 in the years ended Desredih 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.
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Under the terms of the Distribution Agreement, @siss responsible for supplying control units alisposables to Boston Scientific. Celsion
supplies an inventory of control units to Bostome$tific. Boston Scientific places these machinggwaaluation units for eventual sale or sells
the units directly to physicians. Celsion recordsie when Boston Scientific ultimately sells cohtmits to end users. Celsion sells control
units to Boston Scientific at its fully loaded cpétis half of any profit generated on the salestoel sells disposable kits, which each cont:
catheter, a heat exchanger, a tubing set and eflsgrile water, to Boston Scientific at 50% of tiverage selling price generated by sales of
the disposable kits during the preceding six m@mattiod ending on December 31 and June 30 of eaanh Beston Scientific is responsible
maintaining an inventory of disposable kits.

Celsion has contracted out the manufacturing df boé control units and the catheter kits. Proli€eatrol units are manufactured by
Sanmina-SCI under a Medical Product Manufacturiayi®es Agreement. During 2005 we purchased dispesatheter kits from Catheter
Research, Inc., pursuant to a Development and $ugpkeement. Beginning in October 2005, we initthsaipply from an additional
manufacturer, Accellant (formerly Venusa) Corpamatifor the production of catheters and disposalmeler a Medical Product
Manufacturing Services Agreement.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Celsion engages in a limited amount of researchdaneélopment in its own facilities, and insteadregars the majority of its research
programs in partnership with various researchtimsdins, including Duke University. Our expenditsifer research and development were
approximately $9,345,000 $10,081,000 and $11,583@0the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 @4, 2espectively.

CONDUCT OF CLINICAL TRIALS

Celsion monitors its clinical trials using contraesearch organizations, or CROs, to monitor igdstrUse of CROs enables Celsion to
perform high quality clinical trials without the @@ to hire staff and build infrastructure to supsorch trials and to retain all rights to, and
control over, its product candidates. We have tutsttl a formal process for requesting and reviewimgosals from, and interviewing,
prospective CROs in advance of the initiation afreaf our clinical trials. Following such processPecember 2004 we retained Thera@lex
as our CRO in connection with the ThermoDox/RFAgghkliver cancer study, and in February 2005, etained INC Research, Inc. in
connection with the Prolieve post-market study.

FDA REGULATION
Research and Development

Our research and development activities, pre-dirtiests and clinical trials and, ultimately, tharmafacturing, marketing and labeling of our
products, are subject to extensive regulation byRBA. The Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic ActRbblic Health Service Act and the
regulations promulgated by the FDA govern, amomgiothings, the testing, manufacture, safety, afic labeling, storage, record keeping,
approval, advertising, promotion, import and expdrour products.

Under these statutes, our Prolieve system is regglilss a class Il medical device, our heat-aa@ivéiposomes may be regulated as a new
drug. The steps ordinarily required before suclipets can be marketed in the U.S. include (a) pinécal and clinical studies; (b) the
submission to the FDA of an application for an tigational Device Exemption (IDE) or approval asiavestigational New Drug (IND)
which must become effective before human clinidalg may commence; (¢) adequate and well-conttdiieman clinical trials to establish
the safety and efficacy of the product; (d) themsigision to the FDA of an application for premarkgtapproval (PMA), a New Drug
Application (NDA), and (e) FDA approval of the ajgaltion, including approval of all product labeling

5
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Pre-clinical tests include laboratory evaluatiorpaduct chemistry, formulation and stability, aslivas animal studies to assess the potential
safety and efficacy of the product. Pre-clinicdesatests must be conducted by laboratories thiaipty with FDA regulations regarding

Good Laboratory Practice. The results of pre-chtests are submitted to the FDA as part of an ®DEND and are reviewed by the FDA
before the commencement of human clinical trialgrSission of an IDE or IND will not necessarily uéisn FDA authorization to commen
clinical trials and the absence of FDA objectioratolDE or IND does not necessarily mean that DA will ultimately approve a PMA or

that a product candidate otherwise will come tokaar

Clinical trials involve the administration of th@sato humans under the supervision of a qualifiedgipal investigator. Clinical trials must |
conducted in accordance with Good Clinical Prastizeder protocols submitted to the FDA as parnaizE or IND. Also, each clinical trial
must be approved and conducted under the ausdiessinternal review board, or IRB, and with patigriormed consent. An IRB will
consider, among other things, ethical factors,thedsafety of human subjects and the possiblditiabf the institution conducting the
clinical trials.

Clinical trials are typically conducted in two ¢rr¢e sequential phases, but the phases may oveHape | clinical trials involve the initial
introduction of the therapy to a small number dijeats. Phase Il trials are generally larger tréaisducted in the target population. For
devices such as our Prolieve system, Phase llestuday serve as the pivotal trials, providing temdnstration of safety and effectiveness
required for approval. However, as in the casdefRMA for Prolieve, the FDA has required additippast-market trials as a condition of
approval. In the case of drugs and biological poatgluPhase Il clinical trials generally are condddn a target patient population to gather
evidence about the pharmacokinetics, safety anddaal or clinical efficacy of the drug for spdciindications, to determine dosage
tolerance and optimal dosage and to identify péssiiverse effects and safety risks. When a drinjodogical compound has shown
evidence of efficacy and an acceptable safety lprofiPhase Il evaluations, Phase Il clinicalltriare undertaken to serve as the pivotal trials
to demonstrate clinical efficacy and safety in apamded patient population.

There can be no assurance that any of our clitiieds will be completed successfully, within arpesified time period or at all. Either the
FDA or we may suspend clinical trials at any tiriiejther the FDA or we conclude that clinical sedts are being exposed to an unaccep
health risk or for other reasons. The FDA inspaais reviews clinical trial sites, informed consftns, data from the clinical trial sites
(including case report forms and record keeping@tores) and the performance of the protocolsibjcel trial personnel to determine
compliance with Good Clinical Practices. The FDAcaéxamines whether there was bias in the condwtinaal trials. The conduct of
clinical trials is complex and difficult, especialh pivotal Phase Il or Phase Ill trials. Thera ¢ no assurance that the design or the
performance of the pivotal clinical trial protocasany of our current or future product candidatésbe successful.

The results of pre-clinical studies and clinicéls, if successful, are submitted in an applicafar FDA approval to market the device, drug
or biological product for a specified use. Theitegand approval process requires substantial géinteeffort, and there can be no assurance
that any approval will be granted for any produary time, according to any schedule, or at dle FDA may refuse to accept or approve an
application if it believes that applicable regulgtoriteria are not satisfied. The FDA may alsouieg additional testing for safety and

efficacy. Moreover, if regulatory approval is gradithe approval will be limited to specific indiicams. There can be no assurance that any of
our current product candidates will receive requiatpprovals for marketing or, if approved, thapeoval will be for any or all of the
indications that we request.

The FDA is authorized to require various user faekiding NDA fees (currently up to $896,200) andAPapplication fees (currently rangi
from $20,275 up to $281,600). The FDA is also aritedl to require annual user fees for approvedymtzdand for companies with
establishments at which finished products are nmentufed, which fees may increase from year to yeza.FDA may waive or reduce such
user fees under special circumstances. We seelersaiv reductions of user fees where possiblewbutannot be assured that we will be
eligible for any such waiver or reduction.
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Post-Approval Requirements

After receipt of necessary regulatory approvaldrdial manufacturing and sale of our product ddates, our manufacturing facilities and
products are subject to ongoing review and periodipection. Each U.S. device, drug and biologioufiacturing establishment must be
registered with the FDA. Manufacturing establishteen the U.S. and abroad are subject to inspextigrthe FDA and must comply with t
FDA's QSR regulations. Medical devices also mushply with the FDA's QSR regulations. In order tesare full technical compliance with
such regulations, manufacturers must expend fuime,and effort in the areas of production and igpiabntrol. In addition, the FDA may
impose post-approval requirements on us, incluthegequirement that we conduct specified post-gtarl studies.

Inspections

We are subject to the periodic inspection of oinic4l trials, facilities, procedures and operati@md/or the testing of our products by the
FDA to determine whether our systems and procesmsei® compliance with FDA regulations. Followingch inspections, the FDA may ist
notices on Form 483 and warning letters that ceoalsse us to modify certain activities identifiedidg the inspection. A Form 483 notice is
generally issued at the conclusion of an FDA inSpaand lists conditions the FDA inspectors bedievay violate FDA regulations. FDA
guidelines specify that a warning letter only idtoissued for violations of “regulatory significai for which the failure to adequately and
promptly achieve correction may be expected tolt@san enforcement action.

Recalls

The FDA has the authority to require the recalbof products in the event of material deficiencesefects in design or manufacture. A
governmentally mandated recall, or a voluntary ltdgaus, could result from a number of eventsamtérs, including component failures,
manufacturing errors, design defects or defectahialing.

Other FDA Regulations

We are also subject to recordkeeping and reporéigglations, including the FDA’s mandatory Medibavice Reporting, or MDR,
regulations. These regulations require, among dttiegs, the reporting to the FDA of adverse evalieged to have been associated with the
use of a product or in connection with certain picidailures.

Labeling and promotional activities also are retgdeby the FDA and, in certain instances, by thaeFa Trade Commission (FTC). We must
also comply with record keeping requirements as aglequirements to report certain adverse evewntdving our products. The FDA can
impose other post-marketing controls on us as agetiur products including, but not limited to, riesions on sale and use, through the
approval process, regulations and otherwise.

OTHER FEDERAL REGULATIONS

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regsltte frequencies of microwave and radio-frequemasigsions from medical and
other types of equipment to prevent interferendd wommercial and governmental communications nedsvd’he FCC has approved the
frequency of 915 MHZ for medical applications, andchines utilizing that frequency do not requirelsling to prevent interference with
communications. Our products utilize the 915 MH&qgiuency.

PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

Our business exposes us to potential product ifiploisks that are inherent in the testing, mantifing and marketing of human therapeutic
products. We presently have product liability imge limited to $5,000,000 per incident, and, ifwere to be subject to a claim in excess of
this coverage or to a claim not covered by ourriasce and the claim succeeded, we would be reqtarpdy the claim out of our own limit
resources.
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EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2006, we employed 29 full-timgp®yees and also utilized the services of paret@onsultants from time to time. None
of our employees are covered by a collective barggiagreement, and we consider our relations atithemployees to be good.

SEASONALITY
Customer purchasing patterns do not show signifipeedictable seasonal variation.

COMPETITION
Prolieve

BPH has traditionally been treated either surgjcading a procedure in which the prostatic urethrd surrounding tissue in the prostate are
trimmed with a telescopic knife, thereby reopertimg urethral channel for urine flow. Proceduresehagen developed as alternatives to
surgical removal of the obstructing portion of irestate. The condition can also be treated withafrtwo classes of drugs,, alpha-blockers
are one such class of drug, the most commonly pbestof which are Hytriff and Flowmax® . These drugs work by relaxing muscles
surrounding the urethra, thereby easing urinany flbhe alternate drug type is Pros€avhich is designed to shrink the enlarged gland.
However for a number of reasons these treatmengsm@nadequate due to side effects or lack otéffeness. This inadequacy has led tc
development of transurethral microwave treatmentiT) which ablate the tissue surrounding the mtisturethra removing the blockage.
These TUMT systems include devices marketed byddil(NASDAQ:ULGX) and American Medical Systems Hioigs, Inc.
((NASDAQ:AMMD), or AMS (which acquired TherMatrx iduly 2004), as well as Prolieve. Celsion belieaas] market experience to date
has confirmed, that the Prolieve’s combined attebuwof rapid relief, as demonstrated by its lovelef post treatment catheterization, low
pain and minimal side effects make Prolieve contipetin this market.

ThermoDox

Although there are many drugs and devices marlkatddinder development for the treatment of cartcerCompany is not aware of any
other heat activated drug delivery product eitheny marketed or under clinical development.

LICENSES, PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS

The Company owns three United States patents pertgio the treatment of enlarged prostate or ptestancer. These three patents are all
being pursued internationally for patent right patton in a number of territories. Additionallyet@ompany has filed four other related pa
applications in the U.S. and overseas. With regatdposome patents licensed from Duke Univershg, Company has filed two additional
patents related to the formulation and use of bpass. Further, in relation to the patents licerfemah Duke, the Company has licensed from
Valentis, CA certain global rights covering the aé@egylation for temperature sensitive liposomes

The MMTC and Duke license agreements each conliagrsse fee, royalty and/or research support piawss testing and regulatory
milestones, and other performance requirementghiea€ompany must meet by certain deadlines wihaet to the use of the licensed
technologies. In conjunction with the patent hoddéine Company intends to file international agil@ns for certain of the United States
patents.

The Company entered into license agreements witiTIMa development company, in 1996 and 2002 folusie worldwide rights to
MMTC's patents related to its balloon compressirhhology for the treatment of prostatic diseadeuimans. The exclusive rights under the
MMTC license agreements extend for the life of MM3 @atents. MMTC currently has patents in the Uhistates and Canada. The terms of
these patents expire at various times from April&@t November 2014. In addition, MMTC also haspagapplications pending in Japan i
Europe.

In 1999 the Company entered into a license agreewitinDuke University under which the Company liged exclusive rights (subject to
certain exceptions) to commercialize and use Dutkesemo-liposome technology. In January 2003, @alpiurchased these rights from Duke
in exchange for 253,691 shares of the Company’sr@omStock with a value of $2,175,014, subject tp @agreement to pay a royalty based
upon future sales.
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The Companys rights under the license agreement with Duke &hsity extend for the longer of 20 years or the efhany term for which ar
relevant patents are issued by the United StatenPand Trademark Office. Currently, the Compaay hights to Duke’s patent for its
thermo-liposome technology in the United Statesciviexpires in 2018, and to future patents recebse®uke in Canada, Europe, Japan and
Australia, where it has patent applications penditige European application can result in coveragheé United Kingdom, France and
Germany. For this technology, the Company’s licaitgets are worldwide, with various patent rightsvering the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom, France, Germany and Japan.

In addition to the rights available to the Companger completed or pending license agreement< ¢hepany relies on its own proprietary
know-how and experience in the development andfibeat for medical therapies, which the Comparekséo protect, in part, through
proprietary information agreements with employeessultants and others. The Company cannot offerasces that these information
agreements will not be breached, that the Compalhjhave adequate remedies for any breach or bieste agreements, even if fully enfore
will be adequate to prevent third-party use of@wenpany’s proprietary technology. Similarly, then@many cannot guarantee that technology
rights licensed to it by others will not be sucéekg challenged or circumvented by third partiesthat the rights granted will provide the
Company with adequate protection.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following is a summary of the risk factors that believe are most relevant to our business.& hasfactors that, individually or in the
aggregate, we think could cause our actual reguliiffer significantly from anticipated or histosl results. You should understand that it is
not possible to predict or identify all such fastoa€onsequently, you should not consider the faligwio be a complete discussion of all
potential risks or uncertainties. We undertake bigation to publicly update forward-looking statents, whether as a result of new
information, future events, or otherwise. You adeised, however, to consult any further disclosmeemake on related subjects in our rep
on forms 10-Q and 8-K filed with the SEC.

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF SIGNIFICANT LOSSES AND EXPECT TO CONTINUE SUCH LOSSES FOR THE FORESEEABLE
FUTURE.

Since Celsion’s inception in 1982, our expense®sabstantially exceeded our revenues, resultiegitinuing losses and an accumulated
deficit of $90,486,814 at December 31, 2006, inclgdosses of $7,584,230 for the year then endedaBse we presently have only limited
revenues from sales of our Prolieve system andegtidisposables and we are committed to continoiimgoroduct research, development and
commercialization programs, we will continue to espnce significant operating losses unless anilwatcomplete the commercialization
Prolieve, as well as the development of other nemdycts and these products have been clinicaltgdespproved by the FDA and
successfully marketed.
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WE DO NOT EXPECT TO GENERATE SIGNIFICANT REVENUE FO R THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE.

Since 1995, we have devoted our resources to dawela new generation of products but have not laddanto market these products until
we completed clinical testing and obtained all ssaey governmental approvals. On February 19, 2084eceived a PMA from the FDA f
the first of our new generation of thermotherapydorcts—our Prolieve Thermodilatation system forttkatment of BPH—and, since that
time, our distributor Boston Scientific has begamenercial introduction of the Prolieve system. Hgare we can give no assurance as to
how much revenue will be generated by Prolievessaiteaddition, our other products are still inigas stages of development and testing
cannot be marketed until we have completed clirtesting and obtained necessary governmental apprecordingly, our revenue sources
are, and will remain, extremely limited until ouher new products are clinically tested, approvethe FDA and successfully marketed. We
cannot guarantee that any or all of our produclisheisuccessfully tested, approved by the FDA arkmted, successfully or otherwise, at
time in the foreseeable future or at all.

IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO OBTAIN NECESSARY FUNDING, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO COMPLETE THE
DEVELOPMENT, TESTING AND COMMERCIALIZATION OF OURT REATMENT SYSTEMS.

We will need substantial additional funding in artiecomplete the development, testing and comrakzation of our liver cancer and
recurrent chest wall breast cancer treatment systaswell as other potential new products. We raed approximately $9,345,400 on
research and development activities in the 12-mpatfod ended December 31, 2006. As of that datehad approximately $9,032,700 in
cash, cash equivalents and short term investmenisuod to fund our operations. We have made afigignt commitment to our heat-
activated liposome research and development psogedt it is our intention at least to maintaininorease the pace and scope of these
activities. The commitment to these new projectdadoequire additional external funding, at leastiluve are able to generate sufficient cash
flow from sale of one or more of our products tpsort our continued operations. We do not havecamymitted sources of financing and
cannot offer any assurances that additional fundiiigoe available in a timely manner, on accepgaielrms or at all.

If adequate funding is not available, we may beiiregl to delay, scale back or eliminate certaireatpof our operations or attempt to obtain
funds through unfavorable arrangements with pastoeothers that may force us to relinquish rigbtsertain of our technologies, product:
potential markets or that could impose onerousfira or other terms. Furthermore, if we cannotfanr ongoing development and other
operating requirements, particularly those assediatith our obligations to conduct clinical trialsder our licensing agreements, we will be
in breach of these licensing agreements and cbelefore lose our license rights, which could hamegerial adverse effects on our business.
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WE HAVE NO INTERNAL SALES OR MARKETING CAPABILITY A ND MUST ENTER INTO ALLIANCES WITH OTHERS
POSSESSING SUCH CAPABILITIES TO COMMERCIALIZE OUR P RODUCTS SUCCESSFULLY.

Currently our only source of revenues is from thke ®f Prolieve control units and disposables tetBo Scientific which, in turn, distributes
these products to the market. Consequently, wdewendent upon Boston Scientific for the successfrtdduction and marketing of our
Prolieve system. There can be no assurance th&m8sientific will establish adequate sales arstridiution capabilities or be successful in
gaining market acceptance for our Prolieve systisruption of our relationship with Boston Scieittjfor Boston Scientific’s sales of
Prolieve products, would reduce our revenues drsdich reduction were material, it would have aariat adverse effect on our business and
financial condition.

We intend to market our other products, if and wiech products are approved for commercializatipthb FDA, either directly or through
other strategic alliances and distribution arrangets with third parties. There can be no assurtivatenve will be able to enter into thiphrty
marketing or distribution arrangements on advartagéerms or at all. To the extent that we do entersuch arrangements, we will be
dependent on our marketing and distribution pastr@rentering into third-party marketing or dibtriion arrangements, we expect to incur
significant additional expense. There can be narasse that, to the extent that we sell productsctly or we enter into any
commercialization arrangements with third partsessh third parties will establish adequate salelsdistribution capabilities or be successful
in gaining market acceptance for our products andices.

WE DEPEND ON THIRD-PARTY SUPPLIERS TO MANUFACTURE O UR PRODUCTS AND MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN
THESE PRODUCTS ON FAVORABLE TERMS OR AT ALL.

We currently contract for the manufacture of batih Brolieve control units and disposables fromtimisource suppliers. The FDA must
approve the vendors that supply us with Prolieverod units and disposables, and both our suppéiacsthe suppliers of our suppliers must
comply with FDA regulations including good manufaatg practices. Accordingly, we are dependent upancontract manufacturers to
comply with FDA requirements.

In the event a supplier should lose its regulagtayus as an approved source, or otherwise woakkd® supply us, we would attempt to
locate an alternate source. However, we may nabkeeto obtain the required products or componiargstimely manner, at commercially
reasonable prices or at all. To the extent thatréttive sources of supply are not available amaly basis and at reasonable cost, the loss of
any of our suppliers could have a material adveffget on our business. The loss of any of thepplgars would require that we obtain a
replacement supplier, which would result in delagd additional expense in being able to meet goplgicommitments to Boston Scientific.
In addition, our suppliers are in turn largely degent upon single or limited-source suppliers fitiaal components of our products.
Although we believe that alternative sources ofpbypltimately would be available both to us andto suppliers if the need arose, the need
to identify and qualify such alternative suppliptgsuant to FDA requirements would entail significime and expense.

OUR BUSINESS DEPENDS ON LICENSE AGREEMENTS WITH THIRD PARTIES TO PERMIT US TO USE PATENTED
TECHNOLOGIES. THE LOSS OF ANY OF OUR RIGHTS UNDER T HESE AGREEMENTS COULD IMPAIR OUR ABILITY TO
DEVELOP AND MARKET OUR PRODUCTS.

Our success will depend, in substantial part, arability to maintain our rights under license agments granting us rights to use patented
technologies. We have entered into an exclusiwn$e agreement with MMTC, a privately owned devedayd medical devices, for
microwave balloon catheter technology. We have aigered into license agreements with Duke Unitygrander which we have exclusive
rights to commercialize medical treatment prodacts procedures based on Duke’s thermo-sensitivedipe technology. The MMTC and,
Duke University license agreements each conta@m$ie fee, royalty and/or research support prossi@sting and regulatory milestones, and
other performance requirements that we must meeetigin deadlines. If we were to breach thesalwrgrovisions of the license and
research agreements, we could lose our abilityséotiie subject technology, as well as compensadraour efforts in developing or exploitil
the technology. Any such loss of rights and actesschnology could have a material adverse effaatur business.
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Further, we cannot guarantee that any patent er ddchnology rights licensed to us by others moll be challenged or circumvented
successfully by third parties, or that the rightarged will provide adequate protection. We areraved published patent applications and
issued patents belonging to others, and it is leatravhether any of these patents or applicationsther patent applications of which we may
not have any knowledge, will require us to altey ahour potential products or processes, pay §oanfees to others or cease certain
activities. Litigation, which could result in substial costs, may also be necessary to enforc@atents issued to or licensed by us or to
determine the scope and validity of others’ claimpeaprietary rights. We also rely on trade secaeis confidential information that we seek
to protect, in part, by confidentiality agreementth our corporate partners, collaborators, empdsyand consultants. We cannot guarantee
that these agreements will not be breached, that i not breached, that they are adequate t@grour trade secrets, that we will have
adequate remedies for any breach or that our sedets will not otherwise become known to, or wilt be discovered independently by,
competitors.

WE RELY ON THIRD PARTIES TO CONDUCT ALL OF OUR CLIN ICAL TRIALS. IF THESE THIRD PARTIES DO NOT
SUCCESSFULLY CARRY OUT THEIR CONTRACTUAL DUTIES, CO MPLY WITH BUDGETS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
OBLIGATIONS OR MEET EXPECTED DEADLINES, WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN REGULATORY APPROVAL FOR
OR COMMERCIALIZE OUR PRODUCT CANDIDATES IN ATIMELY  OR COST-EFFECTIVE MANNER.

We currently have only 29 full-time employees. Vé/rand expect to continue to rely, on third-pa@fOs to conduct all of our clinical
trials. We have contracted with Theradex to conductPhase | liver cancer trial and with INC Reskalnc. to conduct our Prolieve post-
market study. Because we do not conduct our owmiceli trials, we must rely on the efforts of otharal cannot always control or predict
accurately the timing of such trials, the costoeamsded with such trials or the procedures thafatewed for such trials. We do not anticipate
significantly increasing our personnel in the feeable future and therefore, expect to continuelyoon third parties to conduct all of our
future clinical trials. If these third parties dotrsuccessfully carry out their contractual dutesbligations or meet expected deadlines, if

do not carry out the trials in accordance with rtdd amounts, if the quality or accuracy of thaicéil data they obtain is compromised due
to their failure to adhere to our clinical protogok for other reasons, or if they fail to maintaempliance with applicable government
regulations and standards, our clinical trials hayextended, delayed or terminated or may becootelptively expensive, and we may not
be able to obtain regulatory approval for or susfidly commercialize our product candidates.

OUR BUSINESS IS SUBJECT TO NUMEROUS AND EVOLVING STATE, FEDERAL AND FOREIGN REGULATIONS AND WE
MAY NOT BE ABLE TO SECURE THE GOVERNMENT APPROVALS NEEDED TO DEVELOP AND MARKET OUR
PRODUCTS.

Our research and development activities, pre-dirtiests and clinical trials, and ultimately thematacturing, marketing and labeling of our
products, all are subject to extensive regulatipthie FDA and foreign regulatory agencies. Preicdiihtesting and clinical trial requirements
and the regulatory approval process typically tggars and require the expenditure of substantaluees. Additional government regulation
may be established that could prevent or delaylaggny approval of our product candidates. Delaysefections in obtaining regulatory
approvals would adversely affect our ability to epercialize any product candidates and our abilitgyenerate product revenues or royalties.

The FDA and foreign regulatory agencies requiré¢ tinva safety and efficacy of product candidatesupported through adequate and well-
controlled clinical trials. If the results of pivadtclinical trials do not establish the safety a&ffitacy of our product candidates to the
satisfaction of the FDA and other foreign regulptagencies, we will not receive the approvals nemgsto market such product candidates.

Even if regulatory approval of a product candidatgranted, the approval may include significamitations on the indicated uses for which
the product may be marketed. In addition, we abgesti to inspections and regulations by the FDAdMal devices must also continue to
comply with the FDA'’s Quality System Regulation,@8R. Compliance with such regulations requiresi@nt expenditures of time and
effort to ensure full technical compliance. The FBWingently applies regulatory standards for maotufring.

12



Table of Contents

We are subject to the periodic inspection of oinic4l trials, facilities, procedures and operati@md/or the testing of our products by the
FDA to determine whether our systems and procesmseis compliance with FDA regulations. Followingch inspections, the FDA may ist
notices on Form 483 and warning letters that coaltgse us to modify certain activities identifiedidg the inspection. A Form 483 notice is
generally issued at the conclusion of an FDA inSpaand lists conditions the FDA inspectors badievay violate FDA regulations. FDA
guidelines specify that a warning letter is issaaty for violations of “regulatory significance” favhich the failure to adequately and
promptly achieve correction may be expected tolt@san enforcement action.

Failure to comply with FDA and other governmenggulations can result in fines, unanticipated coamgle expenditures, recall or seizure of
products, total or partial suspension of productiad/or distribution, suspension of the FDA'’s rewi& product applications, enforcement
actions, injunctions and criminal prosecution. Unckrtain circumstances, the FDA also has the aityhto revoke previously granted
product approvals. Although we have internal coampie programs, if these programs do not meet riegylagency standards or if our
compliance is deemed deficient in any significaaywit could have a material adverse effect onrGbmpany.

We are also subject to record keeping and reporégglations, including FDA’s mandatory Medical DevReporting, or MDR, regulation.
Labeling and promotional activities are regulatgdhe FDA and, in certain instances, by the FedBratle Commission.

Many states in which we do or in the future maybdsiness or in which our products may be sold irapieensing, labeling or certification
requirements that are in addition to those impdsethe FDA. There can be no assurance that oneoog states will not impose regulations
or requirements that have a material adverse affeciur ability to sell our products.

In many of the foreign countries in which we mayhdsiness or in which our products may be soldywillebe subject to regulation by
national governments and supranational agencieethas by local agencies affecting, among othigsh, product standards, packaging
requirements, labeling requirements, import restms, tariff regulations, duties and tax requir@tse There can be no assurance that one or
more countries or agencies will not impose regoiegior requirements that could have a materialradveffect on our ability to sell our
products.

LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY CHANGES AFFECTING THE HE ALTH CARE INDUSTRY COULD ADVERSELY
AFFECT OUR BUSINESS.

There have been a number of federal and state gatgoduring the last few years to subject the pgiaf health care goods and services to
government control and to make other changes ttttied States health care system. It is uncevtdiich legislative proposals, if any, will

be adopted (or when) or what actions federal, statprivate payors for health care treatment amdises may take in response to any health
care reform proposals or legislation. We cannodiptehe effect health care reforms may have orbasiness and we can offer no assurances
that any of these reforms will not have a matexthlerse effect on our business.

THE SUCCESS OF OUR PRODUCTS MAY BE HARMED IF THE GOVERNMENT, PRIVATE HEALTH INSURERS AND
OTHER THIRD-PARTY PAYORS DO NOT PROVIDE SUFFICIENT COVERAGE OR REIMBURSEMENT.

Our ability to commercialize our new cancer treattreystems successfully will depend in part ongkient to which reimbursement for the
costs of such products and related treatmentdwilivailable from government health administratiathorities, private health insurers and
other third-party payors. The reimbursement stafusewly approved medical products is subject ¢gmificant uncertainty. We cannot
guarantee that adequate third-party insurance ageewill be available for us to establish and meamprice levels sufficient for us to realize
an appropriate return on our investment in develppiew therapies. Government, private health imswured other third-party payors are
increasingly attempting to contain health caresbgtlimiting both coverage and the level of reimgament for new therapeutic products
approved for marketing by the FDA. Accordingly, evecoverage and reimbursement are provided bygouent, private health insurers
third-party payors for uses of our products, madasteptance of these products would be adverskegtedl if the reimbursement available
proves to be unprofitable for health care providers
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OUR PRODUCTS MAY NOT ACHIEVE SUFFICIENT ACCEPTANCE BY THE MEDICAL COMMUNITY TO SUSTAIN OUR
BUSINESS.

Although we have received a PMA from the FDA for &uolieve system for the treatment of BPH, we afier no assurance that the Proli
system will be accepted by the medical communityelyi or at all. Our cancer treatment developmeaojegts using ThermoDox plus RFA or
microwave heating, are currently in the early stagfePhase | clinical trials. Any or all of thes®jects may prove not to be effective in
practice. If testing and clinical practice do nonfirm the safety and efficacy of our systems wereif further testing and practice produce
positive results but the medical community doesunt these new forms of treatment as effective dagirable, our efforts to market our r
products may fail, with material adverse consegasiio our business.

TECHNOLOGIES FOR THE TREATMENT OF CANCER ARE SUBJEC T TO RAPID CHANGE AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF
TREATMENT STRATEGIES THAT ARE MORE EFFECTIVE THAN O UR TECHNOLOGIES COULD RENDER OUR
TECHNOLOGIES OBSOLETE.

Various methods for treating cancer currently arg in the future may be expected to be, the stibfezxtensive research and development.
Many possible treatments that are being researdh&a;cessfully developed, may not require, or magplant, the use of our technologies.
The successful development and acceptance of agromore of these alternative forms of treatmentatrender our technology obsolete as
a cancer treatment method.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO HIRE OR RETAIN KEY OFFICERS O R EMPLOYEES THAT WE NEED TO IMPLEMENT OUR
BUSINESS STRATEGY AND DEVELOP OUR PRODUCTS AND BUSNESS.

Our success depends significantly on the contimoeadributions of our executive officers, scientiind technical personnel and consultants,
and on our ability to attract additional persoreelve seek to implement our business strategy ewelap our products and businesses.
During our operating history, we have assigned messgntial responsibilities to a relatively smaiier of individuals. However, as our
business and the demands on our key employeesdxparhave been, and will continue to be, requicecruit additional qualified
employees. The competition for such qualified pensbis intense, and the loss of services of aekay personnel or our inability to attract
additional personnel to fill critical positions ddwadversely affect our business. Further, we dacagy “key man” insurance on any of our
personnel. Therefore, loss of the services of l@ggnnel would not be ameliorated by the receiph@fproceeds from such insurance.

OUR SUCCESS WILL DEPEND IN PART ON OUR ABILITY TO G ROW AND DIVERSIFY, WHICH IN TURN WILL REQUIRE
THAT WE MANAGE AND CONTROL OUR GROWTH EFFECTIVELY.

Our business strategy contemplates growth andsifigation. Our ability to manage growth effectiyelill require that we continue to
expend funds to improve our operational, finanaied management controls, reporting systems aneéguooes. In addition, we must
effectively expand, train and manage our employ@éswill be unable to manage our businesses effdgtif we are unable to alleviate the
strain on resources caused by growth in a timetysartcessful manner. There can be no assuranceehaill be able to manage our growth
and a failure to do so could have a material adveffect on our business.

WE FACE INTENSE COMPETITION AND THE FAILURE TO COMP ETE EFFECTIVELY COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT
OUR ABILITY TO DEVELOP AND MARKET OUR PRODUCTS.

There are many companies and other institutionagedyin research and development of various teobied, both for prostate disease and
cancer treatment products that seek treatment mggaimilar to those that we are pursuing. We beltbat the level of interest by others in
investigating the potential of possible competitiresatments and alternative technologies will corgiand may increase. Potential compet
engaged in all areas of prostate and cancer treat@search in the United States and other cosntidude, among others, major
pharmaceutical, specialized technology companias$ uaiversities and other research institutionsstvbdd our competitors and potential
competitors have substantially greater financedhnical, human and other resources, and may alsofar greater experience, than do we,
both in pre-clinical testing and human clinicaalsi of new products and in obtaining FDA and otlegulatory approvals. One or more of
these companies or institutions could succeedwmeldping products or other technologies that areenadfective than the products and
technologies that we have been or are developmgh@h would render our technology and productsobéte and non-competitive.
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Furthermore, if we are permitted to commence coroiaksales of any of our products, we will alsoceenpeting, with respect to
manufacturing efficiency and marketing, with comigarhaving substantially greater resources andreqe in these areas.

WE MAY BE SUBJECT TO SIGNIFICANT PRODUCT LIABILITY  CLAIMS AND LITIGATION.

Our business exposes us to potential product ifigloisks inherent in the testing, manufacturingl amarketing of human therapeutic products.
We presently have product liability insurance liedito $5,000,000 per incident and $5,000,000 ahnugive were to be subject to a claim
excess of this coverage or to a claim not coveyedubp insurance and the claim succeeded, we waiguired to pay the claim with our
own limited resources, which could have a matexierse effect on our business. In addition, lighdr alleged liability could harm the
business by diverting the attention and resour€esiomanagement and by damaging our reputation.

THE EXERCISE OF OUR OUTSTANDING OPTIONS AND WARRANT S COULD RESULT IN SIGNIFICANT DILUTION OF
OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN OUR COMMON STOCK OR OTHER CO NVERTIBLE SECURITIES.

As of December 31, 2006, we had exercisable warramd options outstanding enabling the holderstiid¢o purchase a total of 1,346,089
shares of our Common Stock, including 670,898 shisseieable upon exercise of stock warrants. Taecese prices of these options and
warrants range from $2.18 to $75.00 per share, avitkeighted average exercise price of $11.96 mmesh

We had additional unvested and unexercisable optiotstanding to purchase a total of 196,688 shafresr Common Stock at exercise
prices ranging from $2.18 to $22.50 per share. Sointiee prices are below the current market priceus Common Stock, which has ranged
from a low of $1.90 to a high of $2.31 over thet@ling days ending December 31, 2006 and fromvaofo$3.58 to a high of $4.75 over the
20 trading days ending March 23, 2007.

If holders of our options and warrants choose &r@&se such instruments at prices below the priegaiharket price for our Common Stock,
the resulting purchase of a substantial numbehafes of our Common Stock would have a dilutive&fbn our stockholders and could
adversely affect the market price of our issueda@utdtanding Common Stock. In addition, holdertheke options and warrants who have
right to require registration of the Common Stookler certain circumstances and who elect to recuicé registration, or who exercise their
options or warrants and then satisfy the one-yeltitg period and other requirements of Rule 14thefSecurities Act, will be able to sell in
the public market shares of Common Stock purchaped such exercise.

IF THE PRICE OF OUR SHARES REMAINS LOW, WE MAY BE D ELISTED BY THE AMERICAN STOCK EXCHANGE AND
BECOME SUBJECT TO SPECIAL RULES APPLICABLE TO LOW P RICED STOCKS.

Our Common Stock currently trades on The AmericaiSExchange (Amex). The Amex, as a matter ofgyolvill consider the suspension
of trading in, or removal from listing of, any skowhen, in the opinion of the Amex, (i) the finaalctondition and/or operating results of an
issuer appear to be unsatisfactory; (i) it appéasasthe extent of public distribution or the aggmte market value of the stock has become so
reduced as to make further dealings on the Amedvisable; (jii) the issuer has sold or otherwisgpdsed of its principal operating assets; or
(iv) the issuer has sustained losses which arelsstantial in relation to its overall operationstsrexisting financial condition has become so
impaired that it appears questionable, in the opimif the Amex, whether the issuer will be abledatinue operations and/or meet its
obligations as they mature. For example, the Amibcansider suspending dealings in or delisting #itock of an issuer if the issuer has
sustained losses from continuing operations an#blosses in its five most recent fiscal years.
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On June 14, 2006 and subsequently and separat&gmember 6, 2006, Celsion received notice fraamAtmex that the Amex had
determined that the Company was not in complianite @ertain conditions of the continued listingrstards of Section 1003 of the Amex
Company Guide. Specifically, the Amex noted that@ompany’s shareholders’ equity continues to bg tlkan $4,000,000 and losses from
continuing operations and/or net losses were ieclim three of the last four fiscal years, and tietreholders’ equity was less than
$6,000,000 and losses from continuing operatiodgoamet losses were incurred in each of the lastffscal years. Additionally, the
Company'’s shareholders’ equity was less than $20000and losses from continuing operations and#btasses were incurred in two of its
three most recent fiscal years.

Pursuant to the notice dated June 14, 2006, thep@oynwas afforded the opportunity to submit a glhoompliance to the Amex and on

July 14, 2006, it presented its plan to the Amex.ADgust 31, 2006, the Amex notified the Comparat thhad accepted the Company’s plan
of compliance and granted the Company an extensithDecember 14, 2007 to regain compliance with ¢ontinued listing standards. The
Company will be subject to periodic review by thenéx staff during the extension period. Failure skmprogress consistent with the plai

to regain compliance with the continued listinghskards by the end of the extension period couldirésthe Company being delisted from
the Amex.

If the Company were to be delisted from the Ambar, Common Stock would become subject to the petaok sules of the SEC, which
generally are applicable to equity securities witbrice of less than $5.00 per share (other theuréies registered on certain national
securities exchanges or quoted on the Nasdaq sygtemided that current price and volume informatiaith respect to transactions in such
securities is provided by the exchange or systéim.penny stock rules require a broker-dealery poi@ transaction in a penny stock not
otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a séadided risk disclosure document prepared by the ®iat provides information about
penny stocks and the nature and level of riskeérpenny stock market. The broker-dealer also praside the customer with bid and ask
quotations for the penny stock, the compensatidhebroker-dealer and its salesperson in theddios and monthly account statements
showing the market value of each penny stock hetlé customer’s account. In addition, the penoglstules require that, prior to a
transaction in a penny stock that is not otherwisempt from such rules; the broker-dealer must naaggecial written determination that the
penny stock is a suitable investment for the pusehand receive the purchaser’s written agreenoeghettransaction. These disclosure
requirements would be likely to have a materialeade effect on stock price and the level of tradiotivity in the secondary market for a
stock that becomes subject to the penny stock.riflear Common Stock were to become subject tqoireny stock rules it is likely that the
price of the Common Stock would decline and thatsdackholders would be likely to find it more dlifdilt to sell their shares.

WE HAVE NOT PAID DIVIDENDS IN THE PAST AND DO NOT I NTEND TO DO SO FOR THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE.

We have never paid cash dividends and do not patiipaying cash dividends in the foreseeableduitinerefore, our stockholders cannot
achieve any degree of liquidity with respect tartsbares of Common Stock except by selling suclnesh

OUR STOCK PRICE HAS BEEN, AND COULD BE, VOLATILE.

Market prices for our Common Stock and the se@agitif other medical, high technology companies teen volatile. Our Common Stock
had a high price of $5.83 and a low price of $irBthe 52-week period ending December 31, 2006tdFasuch as announcements of
technological innovations or new products by ubyour competitors, government regulatory actigigdtion, patent or proprietary rights
developments and market conditions for medicaltagt technology stocks in general can have a sggmf impact on the market for our
Common Stock

OUR STOCK HISTORICALLY HAS BEEN THINLY TRADED. THER EFORE, STOCKHOLDERS MAY NOT BE ABLE TO
SELL THEIR SHARES FREELY.

While our Common Stock is listed on the Amex, tiodume of trading historically has been relativeght. There can be no assurance thal
historically light trading volume, or any tradinglume whatsoever, will be sustained in the futtiteerefore, there can be no assurance that
our stockholders will be able to sell their shasEeur Common Stock at the time or at the price thay desire, or at all.
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ANTI- TAKEOVER PROVISIONS IN OUR CHARTER DOCUMENTS AND DE LAWARE LAW COULD PREVENT OR DELAY A
CHANGE IN CONTROL.

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws maycdisrage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisitiaha stockholder may consider
favorable by authorizing the issuance of “blankaiigreferred stock. This preferred stock may Iseiésl by the Board of Directors, on such
terms as it determines, without further stockhokljgproval. Therefore, the Board may issue sucremed stock on terms unfavorable to a
potential bidder in the event that is opposes ayBresr acquisition. In addition, our classified Bibaf Directors may discourage such
transactions by increasing the amount of time rssggg0 obtain majority representation on the Bo#d also have implemented a
stockholder rights plan and distributed rights to stockholders. When these rights become exeleistiiese rights entitle their holders to
purchase one share of our Series C Junior PattiingpBreferred Stock at a price of $66.90 per emethousandth of a share of Series C
Preferred Stock. If any person or group acquiresertttan 15% of our Common Stock, the holders dftsgother than the person or group
crossing the 15% threshold) will be able to purehas exchange for the $66.90 exercise price, 8B8f our Common Stock or the stock of
any company into which we are merged. Because thigsts may substantially dilute stock ownershipabyerson or group seeking to take us
over without the approval of our Board of Directarar rights plan could make it more difficult faperson or group to take us over (or
acquire significant ownership interest in us) withnegotiating with our Board regarding such ageation. Certain other provisions of our
Bylaws and of Delaware law may also discourageaydet prevent a third party from acquiring or maggivith us, even if such action were
beneficial to some, or even a majority, of our ktaiders.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease premises consisting of approximately I3s®@iare feet of administrative office, laboratangl workshop space at 10220-L Old
Columbia Road, Columbia, Maryland 21046-2364 franuaaffiliated party under a seven-year leasedhpires on October 31, 2010. Rent
expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 v&858¥D. Future minimum lease obligations are devid:

For the year ending December 31:

2007 $222,03¢
2008 206,21¢
2009 210,37¢
2010 179,65¢

2011 and beyon —
$818,28¢

Celsion has adequate office and laboratory spadiédforeseeable future.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On April 27, 2006 American Medical Systems, Inad &MS Research Corporation (together referred ttAd4S”) filed suit in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Minnesota allewj infringement of two patents of AMS resultingrfr@ur manufacture, use and sale of the
Prolieve Thermodilatation system. The suit is capd American Medical Systems, Inc. and AMS Re$e@arporation vs. Celsion
Corporation, Case no. 0:06-cv-01606-JMR-FLN. Theaglaint sought injunctive relief against the allégefringement, unspecified trebled
damages, plaintiff costs, expenses and attorney fee

On September 1, 2006 AMS amended the compliargiafighat Prolieve infringes two additional AMS gats. On September 27, 2006, the
U.S. District Court for the District of Minnesot#sthissed the patent infringement lawsuit filed byéican Medical Systems, Inc. (AMS)
against us for lack of personal jurisdiction. Omp®@enber 28, 2006, AMS filed a new suit againstnuhe U.S. District Court for the District

of Delaware, where both companies are incorporaaske no. CA-06-606 (SLR)), alleging that our Rnadi Thermodilatation System
infringes the patents previously asserted in thendsota suit. The complaint sought injunctive felgainst alleged infringement, unspecified
trebled damages, plaintiff costs, expenses andhaydees.

As disclosed on our Current Report on Forid 8led February 9, 2007, Celsion entered into greement with AMS on February 7, 2007
settled the patent dispute. Under the settlememist€elsion paid a licensing fee and will pay aattybased on sales of its Prolieve product
to acquire a product license to AMS’ patents far tise of microwave energy to treat BPH and praistafihe agreement ended litigation
between the two parties. The terms of the licegseeament will not have a material impact on Celsigales or gross margin. The agreement
was also reached with the concurrence of BSC inrdanice with the Transaction Agreement between &8CCelsion dated January 21,
2003 which granted BSC an option to purchase thiee Assets and which required that Celsion obB8C’s approval prior to entering

into agreements related to the Prolieve business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART Il

ITEMS5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET PRICE FOR OUR COMMON STOCK

Our Common Stock trades on The American Stock ExghaT he following table sets forth the high and kales prices for our Common
Stock reported by The American Stock Exchange.dquuwations set forth below do not include retaifko@s, markdowns or commissions.

High

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200

First Quarter (January- March 31, 2005 $9.3C
Second Quarter (April - June 30, 200- $7.5C
Third Quarter (July - September 30, 200 $7.5C
Fourth Quarter (October- December 31, 200! $5.7C
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200

First Quarter (January- March 31, 2006 $5.34
Second Quarter (April - June 30, 200€ $5.8¢
Third Quarter (July - September 30, 200 $3.84
Fourth Quarter (October- December 31, 200¢ $2.77

(Reflects 15:1 reverse stock split effective Febri@d, 2006).

Low

4.8(C
3.7¢5
4.8(C
3.9C

$3.9C
$1.9¢
$2.0zZ
$1.8C

On March 23, 2007, the last reported sale pric@fwrCommon Stock on The American Stock Exchange®al4 As of March 23, 2007,

there were approximately 394 holders of recordusf@mmon Stock.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Under the rules and regulations of the SEC, weaeageired to include in this Annual Report on For@iKLa line graph comparing the
cumulative total stockholder return on our Commatwck with the cumulative total return of (1) a bdosguity market index that includes
companies whose equity securities are traded ogaime stock exchange as our stock (American Stackahge) and (2) a published indu
or line-of-business index.

The Board of Directors recognizes that the markeepf shares is influenced by many factors, amlg of which is Company
performance. The stock performance shown on thehgsanot necessarily indicative of future pricefpemance.

TOTAL RETURN TO STOCKHOLDERS
(Assumes $100 investment on 12/31/01)

m -
M0 E
s 1O
i)
@ b
" ; ; ) . ;
| 2317201 123202 1230 N2F3 0004 127312005 123172006
=t Celsion Comporation —de— AMEX Healthesm lndex —e— AMEX Major Market Index
Total Return Analysis
12/31/200  12/31/200. 12/31/200: 12/31/200. 12/31/200!  12/31/2001
Celsion Corporation $100.0¢ $ 65.1¢ $198.4¢ $ 86.3¢ $ 40.91 $ 19.1¢
AMEX Healthcare Index $100.0¢ $ 60.88 $110.7¢ $111.2( $128.9. $140.1¢
AMEX Major Market Index $100.0C $ 85.6: $103.4¢ $111.1( $104.57 $121.4(

Source: CTA Integrated Communications www.ctairdéen.com(303) 665-4200. Data from ReutersBRIDGE Data Neksor

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsio Common Stock or other securities and do nokatly anticipate paying cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.
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ISSUANCE OF SHARES WITHOUT REGISTRATION

On March 16, 2006, we issued 6,127 shares of ConBtack, valued at $25,000, to Dr. Max Link as airedr for his services as Chairmai
the Board of Directors. These shares are restrgitaak, and the certificates representing sucheshare endorsed with the Celsion’s standard
restricted stock legend, with a stop transfer iretton recorded by the transfer agent. Accordin@lglsion views the shares issued as exempt
from registration under Sections 4(2) and/or 4f@he Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

See also “ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certaindeial Owners and Management and Related Stodkhdllatters—Equity
Compensation Plan Information.”

Period Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Total Number of Maximum Number
Total Average Shares Purchase! of Shares Available
Number Price as Part of Publicly for Purchase under
of Shares Paid per Announced Publicly
Purchasec Share Programs Announced Programs

October 1-31, 200¢€ — — — _
November 1-30, 200¢€ — — — _
December =31, 200€ — — — _
Total — — — _

The Company has never entered into a stock repsegh@gram.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table contains certain financial d&daCelsion for the five fiscal years ended Decentl, 2006, and is qualified in its entirety
by, and should be read in conjunction with, ItemiF8nancial Statements and Supplementary Data @amahEial Disclosure” and Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations.” In Decem!883 the Board of Directors acted
to change Celsion’s fiscal year end from SepterBbap December 31, effective with the year endedebwer 31, 2003. Therefore, the
information for prior periods had been restatedststent with a December 31 year end.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2002 2003
(unaudited) (unaudited) 2004 2005 2006
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue: $ $ — $ 2,506 $12,32( $11,25:
Cost of sale: — 2,101 8,11: 6,66¢
Gross profit — 40¢ 4,207 4,58z
Other costs and expens

Research and developmt 4,97¢ 9,191 11,53 10,081 9,34t

Selling, general and administrati 5,132 5,14: 3,471 3,40¢ 3,72:
Total operating expens 10,11 14,33¢ 15,00¢ 13,48 13,06¢
Loss from operation (20,119 (14,339 (14,599 (9,280 (8,48¢)
Gain on sale of Celsion (Canada), L — — — — 1,01z
Other income (expense), r (389 (237 384 47¢E 357
Interest income (expense), | 38 47 23C 12C (467)
Net loss $(10,457) $(14,429) $(13,98:) $(8,685) $(7,589)
Net loss per shart $ (180 $ (179 $ (1.39) $ (0.8) $ (0.7)
Weighted average shares outstan¢ 5,794 8,251 10,58¢ 10,72¢ 10,72¢
1 Adjusted to reflect 15:1 reverse stock split eféeicbn February 27, 20(

AS OF DECEMBER 31,
2002
(unaudited) 2003 2004 2005 2006
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents and short term invess $ 1,051 $12,27. $10,48: $ 8,31 $ 9,03
Working Capital 993 12,58: 12,01¢ 8,49t 12,01¢
Total Asset: 2,64( 14,44( 17,05: 15,90¢ 18,93(
Debt 50C — — 6,17¢ 16,27¢
Deferred revent-license fee — — 2,952 2,381 1,81(
Other liabilities — — — 30 35
Redeemable preferred stos
Series A 10% Convertible Preferred St 1,15 — — — —
Series B 8% Convertible Preferred St 1,427 — — — —
Accumulated defici (45,809 (60,237) (74,217 (82,909 (90,48¢)
Total stockholder equity (deficit) $ 1,21¢  $1345: $11,97. $ 3428 $ (3,20))
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

Celsion is a biotechnology company dedicated tth&ring the development and commercialization aobogy drugs including tumor-
targeting treatments using focused heat energgrntbnation with heat activated drug delivery. Ir829we obtained premarketing approval
(PMA) from the FDA to use our microwave-based Mforus 1000 heat therapy system on surface and gabsuumors in conjunction with
radiation therapy. We marketed this system unt@i5l9rom 1995 until early in 2004 we engaged iraesh and development of new
treatment systems. On February 19, 2004, we olatari@MA for our Prolieve Thermodilatation systemtfte treatment of Benign Prostatic
Hyperplasia (BPH) and thereafter our marketingrgartBoston Scientific, commenced commercial saléke Prolieve system. In addition,
we are engaged in the development of treatmengsigstising a combination of heat and ThermoDbxour proprietary heat activated
liposomal encapsulation of doxorubicin, for theatraent of liver cancer and breast cancer.

Development pipeline
Our pipeline presently consists of the followinggucts, in the indicated stages of development:

Product Status

* Prolieve Thermodilatation system for the treattrefrBPH We received premarketing approval (PMA) for theliex@ systen
from the FDA on February 19, 2004. Since that time have bee
commercializing the Prolieve system through BosSorentific.
Boston Scientific has an option to purchase thdi¢¥® assets and
technology for $60 million which expires in Febru&009.

» ThermoDox (Doxorubicin-encapsulated thertipmsome) plus heat fi  We are conducting a Phase | clinical trial in dodieation with the
the treatment of cancer National Institutes of Health and Queen V's Hospital in Hong

Kong using ThermoDox in conjunction with radio fuepcy
ablation (RFA) in the treatment of liver cancereT@ompany is
also conducting a Phase | study at the ClevelaimicGind North
Shore Long Island Jewish Health System to testneament
regimens performed in the ThermoDox/RFA study, all as the
Company'’s single vial formulation of ThermoDox andiltiple
dosing of liver cancer patients|[CC3]. We are afsonsoring the
conduct of an investigator initiated Phase | stofithe use of
ThermoDox for the treatment of recurrent chest (RECW) breas
cancer.

From 1995 to 2004, we generated minimal revenudduamded our operations primarily through privakecements of our equity securities.
During 2004, following FDA premarketing approvalair Prolieve Thermodilatation system, we recei@eshe-time licensing fee of $4
million under our agreement with Boston Scientiffee distributor of our Prolieve system. Since igicef the PMA in February 2004, sales of
Prolieve products generated revenues to us of $g#libn. Until such time as we are able to comeldevelopment and testing of, and gain
necessary regulatory approvals for, one or momuobther products, sales of Prolieve products repyesent our only source of revenue. We
presently do not have any committed sources ohéimey.
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We anticipate that our revenues in the next 12 heownill be generated from the sale of our Prolisygtem and related disposables. The
Prolieve system consists of a microwave generatdrcanductors, along with a computer and computiware programs that control the
focusing and application of heat (control unitdlispa specially designed, single-use cathetetkitler our agreement with Boston Scientific,
we are entitled to receive our costs plus 50% ef‘nofit” for each control unit—measured as thifedtence between our costs and Boston
Scientific's selling price (determined in accordandth the agreement) for each control unit—and %0%e revenue generated by Boston
Scientific from the sale of catheter kits, for whiCelsion bears the cost of goods sold. While viripate strong initial sales growth for
Prolieve over time as the product becomes estaulishthe market sales growth will level off.

Should Boston Scientific exercise its option towg our Prolieve assets and related technolog$66rmillion as described further in Note 7
to our financial statements, we would not expegdnerate any revenues for at least the next 12hwoHowever, the Company would exf
to generate investment income on the aggregateedsaeceived from such sale.

In the longer term, we will attempt to develop newenue streams from our current work with Dukevdrsity in targeted drug delivery
systems. We anticipate that revenues will come fitmerlicensing of these technologies to pharmaceluthanufacturers and from eventual
sales to major institutional health care providen® would employ these technologies to deliver degjmens throughout the body or from
the sale of one or more of these technologies.

Costs
Our principal costs consist of:

- costs relating to the production and sale of Pvelieontrol units and catheter kits, which are benmagketed by Boston Scientific
under a seve-year agreement (expiring in 201

- research and development costs related to Thermabd¥rolieve; an

- general and administrative expenses (i.e. corponstehead and other cos
Our research and development activities, pre-@irtiests and clinical trials, and the manufacturingrketing and labeling of each of our
products are subject to extensive regulation byrIbA. We may not bring to market any product in th&. without FDA final or FDA
premarketing approval. We received such premarfgetpproval for our Prolieve system on February2D®4. We are currently conducting

basic research and development activities and puyguototype products through clinical testing aedulatory approval. Our ultimate
objective is to commercialize those products toegete a return on investment for our stockholdemsugh one of several means including:

- selling products directly to end use
- selling products through a distributor (as is tasecwith our Prolieve products); a
- licensing the technology to third parties and gatieg income through royalties and milestone pays
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Significant events during 2006

On January 16, 2006, Celsion contributed to itsllylmwvned subsidiary, Celsion (Canada) Limited (f@da”), all of the Company’s
assets relating to its Adaptive Phased Array (“APi#&thnology for the treatment of breast cancesoAln that date, the Company
entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with thregaoy’s founder, former President and Chief Exeeubfficer and Director,

Dr. Augustine Y. Cheung, whereby the Company solBit Cheung all of the issued and outstandingeshaf capital stock of Canada.
The Company also agreed to provide certain sertic€anada pursuant to a Transition Services Ageaelmetween the Company and
Canada

Under the Stock Purchase Agreement, all of thet@lagtiock of Canada was transferred to Dr. Chearexchange for a promissory note
made by Dr. Cheung in favor of the Company in thiegipal amount of $1,500,000 to be paid over agakof up to 78 months. The
promissory note is secured by a pledge of 100,8a6es of Celsion common stock owned by Dr. Cheunaghés wife, and the
commitment of Canada to pay up to $18,500,000ynltes based on a 5% royalty on net sales of icept@ducts sold by, and patent
royalties received by, Canada.

On February 27, 2006, the Company effected a onéSaeverse split of the Company’s issued andtanting shares of Common
Stock. As of that date, each 15 shares of the Coyip#ssued and outstanding shares of Common Steck automatically combined,
converted and changed into one share of Commork 8fdbe Company (the “Reverse Split”). No frac@bshares were issued as a
result of the Reverse Split. Instead, the Companig pash in lieu of fractional shares based orattezage closing price of the
Company’'s Common Stock for the five trading dayismto the effective date of the Reverse Split.ddslotherwise noted herein, all
share numbers and per share financial informatidhis Annual Report on Form -K are provided on a p-reverse stock split bas

During the second quarter of 2006, Celsion conduateoluntary “Class 11" recall related to its disable catheter kit in order to correct
a manufacturing issue that could cause the cattwefail to reach operating pressure during a inesit. An investigation by the
Company of the new catheter kit manufacturer redasues in the manufacturing process and in bttea@omponents that resulted in
the performance failure. The Company has sinceected both issues and filed a supplement with & t approve the change in the
manufacturing process. A Class Il recall is a $ituain which use of the product in question mayssatemporary or medically
reversible adverse health consequences or wheprabability of serious adverse health consequeiscesnote. Shipments of
disposable catheter kits resumed in August 2

On April 27, 2006 American Medical Systems, Inad &MS Research Corporation (together referred toAdAS”) filed suit in the U.S
District Court for the District of Minnesota allewj infringement of two patents of AMS resultingrfrmur manufacture, use and sale of
the Prolieve Thermodilatation system. On Februa0D7, Celsion entered into an agreement with AN settled the patent dispute.
Under the settlement terms, Celsion paid a licenf@e and will pay a royalty based on sales dPitdieve product to acquire a product
license to AMS’ patents for the use of microwavergy to treat BPH and prostatitis. The agreemedéeéditigation between the two
parties. The terms of the license agreement wilhawe a material impact on Celsion’s sales orgmargin. The agreement was also
reached with the concurrence of BSC in accordarittethe Transaction Agreement between BSC and @elsated January 21, 2003
which granted BSC an option to purchase the Prelfssets and which required that Celsion obtain 'B&@proval prior to entering
into agreements related to the Prolieve busir

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had enrolegaients in its ThermoDox/RFA liver cancer Phistidy. Celsion is conductil
the study in collaboration with the National Instés of Health (“NIH") and Queen Mary’s Hospitalpiry Kong, and is aggressively
recruiting patients eligible for enrollment in theidy both at the NIH and Queen Mary’s Hospitale Tompany believes this study is
close to determining the dc-limiting toxicity as defined in the protocc
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During May 2006, Celsion provided a research girattte amount of $500,000 to Duke University (“Dikand is providing clinical
supplies of ThermoDox to support a Phase |, opeel lstudy of the safety and pharmacokinetics inuReat Chest Wall Breast Cancer
patients. As of December 31, 2006, Duke had erd@lte initiated treatment in seven patie

On December 22, 2006, Michael H. Tardugno was ayedias our President and Chief Executive Offiffiecéve from January 3,
2007. Mr. Tardugno succeeds Lawrence Olanoff, NbB.D., who tendered his resignation effective Oetdl 2006. Anthony P.
Deasey, our Executive Vice President, Chief OpegaBfficer and Chief Financial Officer served as buerim President and Chief
Executive Officer until Mr. Tardugno was appoint

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our financial statements, which appear at Item @i®Annual Report on Form 10-K, have been prepareccordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Statdsch require that the Company make certain astiomgpand estimates and, in connection
therewith, adopt certain accounting policies. Agni§icant accounting policies are set forth in Bl@to our financial statements. Of those
policies, we believe that the following may involaéiigher degree of judgment and may be more afitican accurate reflection of our
financial condition and results of operations:

We state our inventories at the lower of cost orkata We track Prolieve control units by serial raenand cost is the actual cost of
each unit. We carry catheter kits at average €mtrying value does not include any general andigidtrative costs. We have
established an inventory reserve to reflect thiemeséd value of excess and obsolete inven

We recognize revenue on the sale of Prolieve cbuiits as they are sold to ultimate customers bgtén Scientific. Prolieve control
units shipped to Boston Scientific but not yet doldiitimate customers are reflected in Finisheddaanventory. We recognize rever
on the sale of catheter kits upon shipment to BoStentific.

We include in the cost of sales the inventory dagyalue of items sold, shipping and handling,caieneous production costs, excess
and obsolescence costs and warranty expe

We have stock option plans that provide for nonli§jge and incentive stock options to be issueditectors, officers, employees and
consultants. Prior to January 1, 2006, we accouiotedptions issued under the plans under the m@tiog and measurement provisions
of APB Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, as permitted by FAsement

No. 123,Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation . No stock-based compensation cost related to graelstock options was
recognized in the Statement of Operations for #a ¥nded December 31, 2005 as all options grameer the plans had an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlyiommmon stock on the date of grant. Effective Janta®006, we adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123@Rare-Based Payment , using the modified-prospective-transition methddder
that transition method, compensation cost recogniz¢he year ended December 31, 2006 includesof@pensation cost for all share-
based payments granted prior to, but not yet vesdesf December 31, 2005, based on the grant diatealue estimated in accordance
with the original provisions of Statement 123; gdbfilcompensation cost for all share-based payngratgted subsequent to January 1,
2006, based on the gr-date fair value estimated in accordance with tlowipions of Statement 123(F
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We use the Black-Scholes model for determiningfdlivevalue of our options granted. The Black-Schatedel was originally
developed for use in estimating the fair valuerafléd options, which have different characteridtiom Celsion’s incentive and non-
qualified stock options. The model is also sensitivchanges in assumptions, which can materiffigtathe fair value estimate.

As a result of adopting Statement 123(R) on Janua?p06, the Company’s loss before income taxdsahloss for the year ended

December 31, 2006 are $838,602 higher than if tragany had continued to account for share-base@eonsation under Opinion 25.
As a result of adopting Statement 123(R) on Janlia?p06, the Company’s reported basic loss paesinad diluted loss per share for
the year ended December 31, 2006 are $0.08 highaeritit had continued to account for share-basedpensation under Opinion 25.

We review our financial reporting and disclosuragices and accounting policies on an ongoing lasesure that our financial reporting
and disclosure system provides accurate and tregrgpaformation relative to the current economid &éusiness environment. As part of the
process, the Company reviews the selection, apjitand communication of critical accounting pmiand financial disclosures. The
preparation of our financial statements in conféymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires that our
management make estimates and assumptions thett thiéereported amounts of assets and liabilitnesdisclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamtsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdnseg the reporting period. We review our
estimates and the methods by which they are deatedron an ongoing basis. However, actual resuiikiatiffer from our estimates.

Results of Operations
Comparison of year ended December 31, 2006 and year ended December 31, 2005

Actual Results

Year Ended December 31, Change
2006 2005 Dollars Perceni
Sales $11,250,81 $ 12,320,14 $(1,069,32) (9%)
Cost of sale: 6,669,07! 8,112,76! (1,443,68) (18%)
Gross profit 4,581,74. 4,207,38. 374,36 9%
Research and development exper (9,345,38) (10,081,48) 736,10: (7%)
General and administrative expen (3,722,99) (3,405,40) (317,58 9%
Other income (expense
Gain on sale of Celsion (Canada) L 1,011,92. — 1,011,92. —
License fee amortizatic 571,42¢ 571,42 — —
Other expense, n (213,869 (96,897 (116,979 121%
Interest incomt 636,56 299,24! 337,31t 11%
Interest expens (1,103,649 (179,59) (924,059 515%
Net Loss $(7,584,23) $ (8,685,31) $1,101,08 (13%)

Our net loss decreased to $7,584,230 for the yedeceDecember 31, 2006 from $8,685,319 for the grded December 31, 2005. The
decrease in net loss was primarily the result efrtbn-recurring gain recorded related to the siaeetsion Canada (equal to $1,011,923 or
$0.09 per common share) and a reduction of reseaddevelopment expenses, offset partially byekegnition of stock-based
compensation expense of $838,602 (or $0.08 per aonwhare) recognized during 2006 related to thetimoof SFAS 123(R) effective
January 1, 2006 and increased interest expensef meerest income. There was no stock-based cosgtmn expense related to employee
stock options included in net loss for the yeareghBecember 31, 2005 because the Company did opt Huk fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for StocksBd Compensation (SFAS 123"), but rather usedltBmative intrinsic value method.

27



Table of Contents

Net sales for the year ended December 31, 2006 $1dr250,817, a decrease of $1,069,324 or 9% apammh to net sales of $12,320,141
the prior year. Product sales consist of salesioPoolieve products and are comprised of two efgme sales of control units and sales of
disposable catheter kits, all to our exclusivertigtor, Boston Scientific Corporation. The deceeassales during 2006 was due to an
interruption in the supply of product during thesed and third quarters of 2006, caused by a ptadgall of our disposable Prolieve
catheter kits. The product recall was the resuissdies in the manufacturing process followingtthasition to a new supplier. All of the costs
related to this product recall were accrued in 2006

Gross profit for 2006 amounted to $4,581,742 aspaoed to $4,207,381, an increase of $374,461 ofod%he year. As a percentage of se
gross margin increased to 40.7% of net sales dtinegear ended December 31, 2006 as compared1®3# net sales for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The increase of gross marginpascentage of net sales was the result of purahbmver cost catheter kits from a new
supplier.

Research and development expenses amounted $8346r3he year ended December 31, 2006 as compa&lD,081,483 for the year
ended December 31, 2005, a decrease of $736,192 owver the prior year. The decrease in researgllanelopment expenses for the year
was due primarily to:

0 a$1,064,000 reduction in consulting support ancligment costs for the Prolieve syste

o] decreased research and development activitiesiag=d with our breast cancer treatment devicehaad activated gene
technology, which reduced research and developowats by an aggregate of $422,000;

o] a one-time termination fee amounting to $350j0@0rred in 2005 related to the migration of mactfang of catheter kits to a
new supplier

The reduction in research and development expenagpartially offset by $432,402 of stock-based pensation expense recognized for the
year ended December 31, 2006 related to the adoptiSFAS 123(R) effective January 1, 2006, andeiased regulatory and qual
assurance expenses amounting to $448,000.

General and administrative expense amounted $339220r the year ended December 31, 2006 as cohpak3,405,409 for the year enc
December 31, 2005, an increase of $317,582 or ¥bthe prior year. The increase in general and midirative expenses for the year was
due primarily to the recognition of stock-based pemsation expense of $406,200 recorded during 8l@&d to the adoption of SFAS 123
(R) effective January 1, 2006 and higher accountnglit, Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and directas, fpartially offset by reduced
compensation costs for corporate personnel.

The Company recorded a net gain on sale of CeBarada of $1,011,923 during the year ended Dece®ih@006. As described further in
Note 4 to the Celsion financial statements, the famy sold 100% of the outstanding shares of CelSamada to Dr. Augustine Y. Cheul
Celsion’s founder and director, in exchange fooa-imterest bearing promissory note of $1,500,@00et paid over 78 months. The Stock
Purchase Agreement also provides for Celsion Catmagay up to $18,500,000 in royalties based o%oadyalty on net sales of certain
products sold by, and patent royalties receivedd®fsion Canada and its successors and assigns.

Other expense, net for the year ended Decemb@0886, was $213,869 as compared to $96,891 forehegnded December 31, 2005. Other
expense, net for 2006, consisted primarily of tA@687 loss associated with the termination ofict@rest in Celsion China, Ltd.

Interest income for the year ended December 316 2@@bunted to $636,561 as compared to $299,248éoyear ended December 31, 2005,
an increase of $337,316 or 113%. The increase leaesult of higher average principal balancegéirt due to the drawdown of loans from
Boston Scientific on February 22, 2006 and July2Z®6) and higher yields earned on our investments.
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Interest expense for the year ended December 88, @®ounted to $1,103,644 as compared to $179¢83hd year ended December 31,
2005, an increase of $924,053 or 515%. This inergas due to the drawdown of the second installmktite BSC loan on February 2, 2006
(in the amount of $4,500,000) and the third instelht on July 28, 2006 ($4,500,000) as well aslay&dr of interest expense on the first loan
installment of $6,000,000 received from Boston Biifie on August 17, 2005.

Comparison of year ended December 31, 2005 and year ended December 31, 2004

Actual Results

Year Ended December 31, Change

2005 2004 Dollars Percent
Sales $12,320,14 $ 2,506,22¢ $9,813,91. 392%
Cost of sale: 8,112,76! 2,100,88! 6,011,87. 28€%
Gross profit 4,207,38. 405,34( 3,802,04. 93¢%
Research and development exper (10,081,48) (11,533,42) 1,451,93i (13)%
General and administrative expen (3,405,40) (3,470,86) 65,46( (2)%
Other income (expens 594,19. 613,90: (19,710 (3)%
Net Loss $ (8,685,31) $(13,985,04) $5,299,72! (38)%

Net sales for 2005 were $12,320,141, an increa$8,8f.3,913 or 392%, compared to $2,506,228 in 2Béaduct sales consist of sales of
Prolieve products and are comprised of two elemesales of control units and sales of disposadiieater kits, all to our exclusive
distributor, Boston Scientific Corporation. Theri@ase in revenues during the year ended Decemb@08% compared to the year ended
December 31, 2004 reflects a partial period (comuimgnwith grant of the PMA on February 19, 2004004, as well as the progress of
commercialization and marketing efforts.

Research and development expenses for the yead &etember 31, 2005 of $10,081,000 were $1,4520003% lower than expenses
incurred in the year ended December 31, 2004 of58B]000. The decrease in expenses was due totheenurrence of expenses associated
with receipt of the PMA for the Prolieve systemsltdonuses paid to employees in connection witipeof the PMA offset by 2004
performance bonus payments ($375,000) and a reduicticonsulting support related to developmentapptoval of the Prolieve system
($851,000). The reduction is also attributabledo-necurrence of costs related to personnel mg$dr402,000); a reduction in clinical costs
due to the closure of our heat-alone breast caslicecal study and suspension of our prostate aaclo@cal study ($400,000); write-off of
product development costs ($379,000) and costterkta consultants hired to aid in clinical comptia ($217,000), offset by adjustments in
stock related compensation expense in 2004 duediedses in the market price of our Common Sto8RIH00); patent expenses
($236,000); preclinical and clinical costs assaaawith our liver cancer clinical studies ($574,Ghd the first installment of the grant to
Duke University related to the recurrent chest wadlast cancer study ($275,000).

General and administrative expenses in the yeagdBecember 31, 2005 were $3,405,000 a reducti®e®000, or 2%, compared to
$3,471,000 for the year ended December 31, 200&reTluere, however, a number of changes in the egsanaking up total general and
administrative costs. Compensation costs increasedresult of adjustments in stock related congiemmsexpense in 2004 due to decreases
in the market price of our Common Stock ($464,00]) provision for costs related to personnel ma{808,000) offset by non-recurrence
of expenses arising due to the approval of thei@mlsystem in February 2004, principally consgstifia payment to Legg Mason for
investment banking services rendered in connegtitnnegotiation of our strategic relationship wgbston Scientific in 2003 which became
due upon receipt of the PMA ($410,000); cash bospséd to employees in connection with receipthefPMA offset by 2004 performance
bonus payments ($85,000); and changes in invesations programs and consultants ($188,000).

The net decrease of $1,517,000 in operating expardiduring the year ended December 31, 2005 caupa the comparable period during
2004, combined with income generated (gross mafgmn) the sale of Prolieve products during the yarated December 31, 2005, resulte

a decrease in the loss from operations for the geded December 31, 2005 of $5,319,000 or 3698 286,000 from $14,599,000 in the
year ended December 31, 20
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Interest income, which is reflected net of anyriest expense, decreased by 48%, or $110,000 foretdreended December 31, 2005
compared to the year ended December 31, 2004. 8¢rease was due to interest accrued on a loanBaston Scientific which closed on
August 8, 2005, and whose principal balance ineeasiring 2006.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our core business activity is to develop produetisd@at cancer and other diseases, and to comnieediaose products to generate a return on
investment for stockholders through one of sevai@dns including:

» selling products directly to end use

» selling product through a distributor (as is theecaith our Prolieve products

» licensing our technology to third parties and gatieg income through royalties and milestone paysend
» outright sale of a technology directly or, ultimigtehough the sale of the entire Compa

Our business model will generate uneven cash flawgontinuing research and development expenditvitenot necessarily be matched by
revenues from one of the above sources. In thetéwanhour annual research and development expeaditire not covered by current
revenues, funding will be provided from other s@srincluding any cash on hand, revenues providetb@se, income generated from
licensing agreements and debt or equity fundingediin the capital markets.

Since inception, our expenses have significantty regularly exceeded our revenues, and we haveamalated deficit of $90,486,814 and
stockholders’ deficit of $3,200,824 at DecemberZ106. We have incurred negative cash flows froeratons since our inception and have
funded our operations primarily through the saleapdity securities, loans from Boston Scientifid gmofit generated from the sale of our
Prolieve units. At December 31, 2006, we had togatent assets of $16,022,505 (including cash aod serm investments of $9,032,674)
and current liabilities of $4,008,002, resultingainvorking capital surplus of $12,014,503. At Deben31, 2005, we had total current assets
of $12,841,104 (including $8,313,430 in cash arattsierm investments) and current liabilities of&#5,594, which resulted in working
capital of $8,945,510 at such date. The decreas®iiking capital is primarily the result of fundsad in our research and other operating
activities, as well as fixed asset purchases.

Our short term investments consist of Auction Ragetificates and Auction Preferred Securities. AarcRate Certificates are municipal
bonds which pay interest at a floating rate seibdérally, usually 7, 28 or 35 days. Auction Preéet Securities are issued by closed end bonc
funds and pay dividends every 7, 28 or 35 dayselses or withdrawals from investments can takeepaery 7, 28 or 35 days. Both
investment vehicles are rated A1P1 commercial pageivalents, trade at par and do not have sigmfimarket fluctuations.

Net cash used in operating activities for the yrated December 31, 2006 was $7,232,790. This sbtreguirement was funded from c:i

on hand at the beginning of the year, together thi¢hsecond and third installments of a loan framstBn Scientific totaling $9,000,000.
Under the loan agreement, which was effective ogust 8, 2005, Boston Scientific agreed to lend@benpany up to $15,000,000, disbursed
in three installments. The first installment, ie timount of $6,000,000, was disbursed on Augus2dd5. The second installment of
$4,500,000 was disbursed on February 2, 2006 anthitd installment of $4,500,000 was disbursedwy 28, 2006.

Loans from Boston Scientific are repayable on Faty@8, 2009 and accrue interest at a rate of ppioe 1%. The maturity date of the loan
is accelerated in the event Boston Scientific @gercits option to purchase certain assets andaéadly of the Company under the
Transaction Agreement. Loans outstanding are sddyre continuing security interest in the Companight, title and interest in the BPH
Business and the BPH Assets (as those terms daredéf the Transaction Agreement).
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Boston Scientific may, at any time, convert in wehol in part the outstanding loan balance plususttinterest into shares of the Company’s
common stock at a minimum conversion price of $Qébshare (as adjusted for the 2006 15:1 revéos& split). Additionally, Boston
Scientific may apply the outstanding principal phcsrued interest on the Note toward the Optiorr&se Price (as defined in the Transac
Agreement) if Boston Scientific decides to exerdfse option granted to BSC under the Transactioredgent relating to the assets and
technology with respect to the CompaniProlieve product. Such option gives Boston Sifierihe right to purchase for $60 million the ats
and technology relating to the manufacture, manketsale, distribution and/or research and devedoprof products using the Company’s
thermal therapy for the treatment of BPH (the “Reneg¢ Assets”). There can be no assurance wheneif Boston Scientific will exercise its
right to purchase. In the event that Boston Sdierdbes exercise its option, the Company will reeean immediate infusion of cash but will
cease to receive revenues from the sale of Profigstems and related disposables. The Companyhéaight to prepay the loan at any time
without penalty.

The Company has a balance of $1,824,740 at Dece3db@006 in a restricted escrow account relatetedicense fee and distribution
agreement with BSC. This balance was released &mrow on February 20, 2007 and used to purchbsense from AMS and pay final
legal costs. Costs of $318,199 were disbursed frenescrow account during the year ended Decenih@0B6.

As of December 31, 2006, we had net operatingdasy forwards for federal income tax purposespgraximately $77,900,000, which
expire, if unused, by the year 2027. These NOL'y bmdetermined to be restricted in their future dge to various IRS utilization rules.

Expiration During
Approximate Amount Of Unused

Operating Loss Carryforwards Year Ended

$ 60,0( 12/31/200:
1,390,0( 12/31/2011
1,900,0( 12/31/201.
3,050,0( 12/31/201;
3,900,0( 12/31/201.
2,400,0( 12/31/201
4,500,0( 12/31/202!
6,500,0( 12/31/202.
9,500,0( 12/31/202;
12,000,0( 12/31/202.
2,300,0( 12/31/202.
15,600,0( 12/31/202!
8,200,0( 12/31/202
6,600,0( 12/31/202

$ 77,900,0(

For the year ending December 31, 2007, we expestgend approximately $18,000,000 to commercialireProlieve system and for clini
testing of liver cancer and breast cancer treatsygstems, as well as for corporate overhead, allhaéh we expect to fund from funds on
hand and revenues anticipated from the sale oPmlieve system and related disposables. The forgge an estimate, based upon
assumptions as to the scheduling of institutiofiniaal research and testing personnel, the tingihglinical trials and other factors, not all of
which are fully predictable.

31



Table of Contents

The Company does not believe that inflation hadagenial affect on its reported sales or net losdHe years reported.
Our contractual obligations as of December 31, Z8@ummarized as follows:

Payments Due by Period
(Dollars in Millions)

One yeal
Two to Four to After
Contractual Obligations Total or less three years five years five years
Operating leas—Property $08 $ 02 $ 04 $ 02 $ —
BSC loan payabl 19.c — 19.c — —
Dr. Cheung consulting agreem $ 0.2 $ 0.2 — — —
Total contractual obligatior $20.2 $ 04 $ 197 $ 02 $ —

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We do not currently hold any derivative instrumeantsl do not engage in hedging activities and ctlgrelo not enter into any transactions
denominated in a foreign currency. Thus, our exposuinterest rate and foreign exchange fluctmatis minimal.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA AND FIN ANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The financial statements, supplementary data goattref independent public accountants are filedaas of this report on pages F-2 through
F-25.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We have conducted an evaluation of the effectivenéshe design and operation of our disclosurdrotsiand procedures (as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeBgwmurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlcbdhge Act)) under the supervision,
and with the participation, of our management,udaig our principal executive officer and princifimancial officer. Based on that
evaluation, our principal executive officer andngipal financial officer concluded that as of Det@®@mn31, 2006, which is the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 1@, disclosure controls and procedures are effectiv

There have been no changes in our internal cortxas financial reporting in the fiscal quarter edddecember 31, 2006 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Management has issued its Report on Internal Cloower Financial Reporting as of December 31, 20@@ch appears in Item 15 of this
Report. The report of the Independent Registerddid®Accounting Firm on Management’s Report on tng Control over Financial
Reporting also appears in Item 15.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information required by this Item 10 is incargted herein by reference to the definitive Protat&nent to be, filed with the SEC
pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after¢ind of the fiscal year covered by this Annualdtepn Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to the information set forth urtblercaption “Executive Compensation” in
Celsion’s Definitive Proxy Statement in connectigith the Annual Meeting of Stockholders which ipegted to be held on June 13, 2007,
which has been, or will be, filed with the Secastand Exchange Commission within 120 days afteetid of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Certain information required by this item is incorated by reference to the information set fortbarnthe caption “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in Calsi@efinitive Proxy Statement in connection witle tAnnual Meeting of Stockholders
which is expected to be held on June 13, 2007, whiés been, or will be, filed with the Securitiesl&xchange Commission within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year ended Decembe3Q6.

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of DecembeB1, 2006

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities tc Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercis exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options outstanding options, securities reflected in
Plan category warrants and rights (a) warrants and rights (b) column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securit
holders 871,87 8.4¢ 426,18(
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — @ 0.0C —@
Total 871,87¢ 8.4¢ 426,18(

@ Includes both vested and unvested options to paecB@mmon Stock issued to employees, officersdardtors and outside
consultants under the Company’s 2001 Stock Optlan &1d 2004 Stock Option Plan (the Plans). Cedfthese options to purchase
Common Stock were issued under the Plan in cororeatith employment agreements.

@  As discussed further in Note 8 to the Company’ariitial statements, the Company has warrants odtstpat December 31, 2006
enabling the holders thereof to purchase 670,888:shof the Company’s Common Stock at a weighteda@e exercise price of
$14.83. Certain of the warrants have price prateatir anti-dilution rights that entitle the holdéosreduce the exercise price of such
securities if the Company issues additional stopkions, warrants or other convertible securitieow the exercise price of the subject
securities.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this item is incorp@cby reference to the information set forth urttlercaptions “Certain Transactions” in
Celsion’s Definitive Proxy Statement in connectigith the Annual Meeting of Stockholders which ipegted to be held on June 13, 2007,
which has been, or will be, filed with the Secastand Exchange Commission within 120 days afteetid of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@cby reference to the information set forth uritlercaptions “Proposal No. 3: Ratification
of Independent Public Accountants—Fees,” “—Serving&Employees of Stegman & Company” and Audit Committee Policy on Approv
of Audit and Non-Audit Services” in Celsion’s Deiline Proxy Statement in connection with the AnnMedeting of Stockholders which is
expected to be held on June 13, 2007, which has lbesvill be, filed with the Securities and ExclgenCommission within 120 days after the
end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a list of the financial statemenfsCelsion Corporation filed with this Annual Repon Form 10-K, together with the reports
of our independent registered public accountandshd@nagement’s Report on Internal Control over fai@ Reporting.

Page
REPORTS
Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reay F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-2
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm F-3
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance Shee F-4
Statements of Operatio F-6
Statements of Cash Flo\ F-7
Statements of Changes in Stockhol’ (Deficit)/Equity F-8
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F-9

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
No schedules are provided because of the absemmnditions under which they are requir
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3. EXHIBITS

The following documents are included as exhibitthts report:

EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION

3.11

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.2

3.3
4.1

4.2

42.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4.1*

10.5

10.6

Certificate of Incorporation of Celsion (the “Conmyd), as amended, incorporated herein by referémé&exhibit
3.1.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form-Q of the Company for the Quarter Ended June 3042

Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Celsion Gugtion (a Maryland Corporation) into Celsion (Dretae)
Corporation (inter alia, changing the Company’s aam“Celsion Corporation” from “Celsion (Delaware)
Corporation), incorporated herein by referencexbilit 3.1.3 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K lo¢ tCompany
for the Year Ended September 30, 2(

Certificate of Designations of Series C Junior iegrating Preferred Stock of Celsion Corporatiarcdrporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Form Begjistration Statement (File No. 333-100638) filactober 18,
2002.

By-laws of the Company, as amended, incorporatedrbyeieference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Quarterly Réjpo Forn
1C-Q of the Company for the Quarter Ended June 3042

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Imporation effective February 27, 2006 filed on ketyy 27,200¢

Form of Common Stock Certificate, par value $0i6dorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1th®Annual
Report on Form 1-K of the Company for the Year Ended September 801z

Celsion Corporation and American Stock Transferr&st Company Rights Agreement dated as of Augus2Q82,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to ther€ut Report on Form-K of the Company filed August 21, 20(

Amendment adopted January 16, 2003 to Rights Ageeebetween Celsion Corporation and American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company. Incorporated herein bgnence to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Report amrr 10-Q of
the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2

License Agreement between the Company and MMTC dated August 23, 1996, incorporated herein bgresfce
to Exhibit 10.2 to the Annual Report on Form 104tee Company for the year ended September 30, 1996
(Confidential Treatment Requeste

Amendment dated November 25, 1997 to the Licensedigent between the Company and MMTC, Inc. dated
August 23, 1996, incorporated herein by referendexhibit 10.8 to the Annual Report on Form 10-kKhénded) of
the Company for the year ended September 30, 1@@8fidential Treatment Requeste

Patent License Agreement between the Company akd Daiversity dated November 10, 1999, incorporéteictin
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Annual Repaorform 10-K of the Company for the year ended Sepéz 30,
1999 (Confidential Treatment Requeste

Celsion Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, ipooated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 toGuarterly
Report on Form 1-Q of the Company for the quarter ended June 304

Form of Series 200 Warrant issued to certain engasydirectors and consultants to Purchase Commoock 8f the
Company, Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibill to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of therpany for
the year ended September 30, 1¢

Form of Series 250 Warrant issued to Dunn Hughddintp, Inc. to Purchase Common Stock of the Company
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10d.¢he Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Companythieryear
ended September 30, 19¢
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10°

10.11°

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

Form of Series 300 Warrant issued to Nace Resourmeso purchase Common Stock of the Companyrjmarated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the AnriReport on Form 10-K of the Company for the yearegh8eptember 30,
1998.

Form of Series 500 Warrant to Purchase Common Stbttle Company pursuant to the Private Placemearhbtandum
dated January 6, 1997, as amended, incorporatedhhsr reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Annual &¢pn Form 10-K
of the Company for the year ended September 3(8.:

Form of Series 600 Warrant issued to Certain Enmgdeyand Directors on May 16, 1996 to Purchase Can8tuxk of the
Company, incorporated herein by reference to ExAibil7 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of tharPany for the
year ended September 30, 19

Employment Agreement Effective January 1, 2004 betwthe Company and Anthony P. Deasey. Incorpotategin by
reference to the Current Report on For-K of the Company filed December 8, 20!

Stock Option Grant Agreement effective July 29,2688veen Celsion Corporation and Lawrence S. Ofamoform 8-K
of the Company filed July 29, 20(

Service Agreement between the British Columbia @aAgency, Division of Medical Oncology, Investigmatal Drug
Section, Propharma Pharmaceutical Clean Room an@dimpany dated September 20, 2000, incorporateihhay
reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Annual ReporfFonm 10-K of the Company for the year ended Sepézr@d, 2000
(Confidential Treatment Requeste

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of the @ pursuant to the Private Placement Memorandatedd
October 11, 2001, incorporated herein by referéadexhibit 10.23 to the Annual Report on Form 1@#he Company
for the year ended September 30, 2(

Advisory Agreement between the Company and Dr. Meekat dated August 1, 2001, incorporated hergireference to
Exhibit 10.24 to the Annual Report on Formr-K of the Company for the year ended September G012

Amendment dated September 17, 2002 to the Licegseefnent between the Company and MMTC, Inc. dategliét 23,
1996, incorporated herein by reference to ExhiBi2é to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Comypfor the year
ended September 30, 20!

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock Unithef@Gompany issued to Placement Agents pursuahétBrivate
Placement Memorandum dated October 18, 2001, incatgd herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to thgi&eation
Statement on Form-3 of the Company (File No. 3-82450) filed February 8, 200

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock of the (@ pursuant to private placement by the Comparigiwclosed
on June 3, 2002, incorporated herein by referem&xhibit 4.6 to the Form S-3 Registration Statenoéithe Company
(File No. 33:-100638) filed October 18, 200

Letter dated May 8, 2002, from Legg Mason Wood Walkncorporated (“Legg Mason”) to the Company regay
retention of Legg Mason as financial advisor, ipooated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 toAhaual Report on
Form 1(-K of the Company for the year ended September G02:

Letter Agreement with Goldpac Investment Partnated October 17, 2001, incorporated herein by eefer to Exhibit
4.5 to the Form -3 Registration Statement (File No. -82450) filed February 8, 200

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock pursuethtet Private Placement Memorandum (the “PPd'the Compan
dated May 30, 2003 as supplemented, incorporateirhiy reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Form S-gjiRation
Statement of the Company (File No. -108318) filed on August 28, 20C

Form of Warrant issueth the Placement Agents pursuant to the PPM, imzatpd herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 tc
Form &-3 Registration Statement of the Company (File Ng3-108318) filed on August 28, 20C

36



Table of Contents

10.22

10.23.1

10.23.2

10.23.3

10.23.3.1

10.24.1

10.24.2

10.24.3

10.24.4

10.24.5

10.24.6

10.24.7

10.24.8

10.24.9
10.24.10

10.24.11-

10.24.12

License Agreement dated July 18, 2003 between timep@ny and Duke University. (Confidential treatment
requested.), incorporated herein by reference tolibd.3 to the Form S-3 Registration StatemernthefCompany
(File No. 33:-108318) filed on August 28, 20!

Transaction Agreement effective as of January 2032y and between Celsion Corporation and BostienSfic
Corporation, incorporated herein by reference ¢oGlrrent Report on Form 8-K filed January 22, 2@@®nfidential
treatment requeste

First Amendment to Transaction Agreement effectizef August 8, 2005, between Celsion Corporati@hEBoston
Scientific Corporation, incorporated herein by refece to the Current Report on For-K filed August 9, 200!

Convertible Secured Promissory Note dated as ofuaug, 2005, incorporated herein by referencee¢dtirrent
Report on Form-K of the Company filed August 9, 20!

Convertible Secured Promissory Note dated July2@86 between Celsion Corporation and Boston Sdienti
Corporation filed on Form-K on August 6, 200!

Letter dated March 16, 2006 from the Company tofeswe S. Olanoff (awarding restricted stock purstmihe
Compan’s 2004 Stock Option Plan) filed on Fori-K on March 22, 2001

Letter dated March 16, 2006 from the Company tchAny P. Deasey (awarding restricted stock purstastiite
Compan’s 2004 Stock Option Plan) filed on Fori-K on March 22, 2001

Letter dated March 16, 2006 from the Company tao{yarFinkle (awarding restricted stock pursuantht® Companys
2004 Stock Option Plan) filed on Forr-K on March 22, 200!

Letter dated March 16, 2006 from the Company tohdat Oleck (awarding restricted stock pursuanbhéG@ompanys
2004 Stock Option Plan) filed on Forr-K on March 22, 200!

Employment Agreement, effective January 3, 200%yvéen Celsion Corporation and Mr. Michael H. Tantidjled
on Form K on December 21, 20C

Stock Option Agreement effective January 3, 20GWeen Celsion Corporation and Michael H. Tardugteaifon
Form &K on January 3, 200

Stock Purchase Agreement made January 16, 20G6)dgmong Dr. Augustine Y. Cheung, Celsion Corpamaind
Celsion (Canada) Limite

Transition Services Agreement effective January2066, by and between Celsion Corporation and @el&anada)
Limited

Consulting Agreement effective January 16, 2006ay between Celsion Corporation and Dr. Augustin€heung

Separation Agreement and General Release effetdiveary 16, 2006, by and between Celsion Corporatial Dr.
Augustine Y. Cheun

First amendment to Transition Services Agreemetdred into as of March 28, 2006 by and betweeni@els
Corporation and Celsion (Canada) Limi

Restricted Stock Agreement dated October 3, @
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10.24.1.
10.24.1-

10.24.1!

14.1

23.1+
31.1+
31.2+
32.17

32.2n

Stock Option Grant Agreement dated October 3, -

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Celsion @oation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan filed on Form 10Q
November 8, 200

Form of Stock Option Agreement for Celsion Corpara2004 Stock Incentive Plan filed on Form 10QNmvember 8,
2006

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, incorporagedih by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Annuap&eon Form 10-
K of the Company for the Year Ended September 603

Consent of Stegman & Company, independent regisfaublic accounting firm for the Compa
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamt $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantcdiioB8e906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Filed herewith
Furnished herewitt
Management contract or compensatory plan furnisieedwith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 13 or 158{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused its annual
report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalfl®yandersigned thereunto duly authorized.

March 27, 2007

CELSION CORPORATIONM

By: /s/ Michael H. Tardugno
Michael H. Tardugnt
President and Chief Executive Offic

By: /s/ Anthony P. Deasey
Anthony P. Dease
Executive Vice PresidentChief Operating Officer, Chief Financi
Officer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Bxgha\ct of 1934, this report has been signed bydhewing persons on behalf of the

Registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated:

SIGNATURE

TITLE DATE

/sl Michael H. Tardugno

Michael H. Tardugnt

/s/ Anthony P. Deasey

Anthony P. Dease

/s/ Max E. Link

Max E. Link

/sl Gary W. Pace

Gary W. Pact

/sl Lawrence S. Olanoff

Lawrence S. Olano

/sl Kris Venkat

Kris Venkat

/sl Gregory Weaver

Gregory Weave

/sl Augustine Chow

Augustine Chow

President and Chief Executive Officer March 27, 200°
(Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President — Chief Operating Officer,
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

March 27, 200°

Chairman of the Boar March 27, 200°
Director March 27, 200°
Director March 27, 200°
Director March 27, 200°
Director March 27, 200°
Director March 27, 200°
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN{AL REPORTING

The management of Celsion Corporation is respoaédrlestablishing and maintaining adequate interoatrol over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company'siiraiecontrol over financial reporting
is designed to provide reasonable assurance regattt reliability of financial reporting and theeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with accountimicpies generally accepted in the United Statesnoérica (GAAP). The Company'’s
internal control over financial reporting includb®se policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thatgasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatitinasfcial statements in accordance with
GAAP and that receipts and expenditures of the Gay@re being made only in accordance with authtiom of management and directors
of the Company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prwer timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlenéial statements

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgject to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehes Companys internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2006.
making this assessment, management used theasdrforth in Internal Control- Integrated Framewigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgxdSO).

Based on management’s assessment and those critariagement has concluded that, as of Decemb@086, the Company'’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective tmpide reasonable assurance regarding the retiabilifinancial reporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toatance with GAAP.

The Company’s independent registered public acemisit Stegman & Company, have issued an attestaiamt on management s
assessment of the Company’s internal control anantial reporting. The report of Stegman & Compappears on the following page.

F-1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGERM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Cel<iamporation

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodbed accompanying Management’s Report on IntéCoatrol Over Financial
Reporting, that Celsion Corporation (the Compangjntained effective internal control over finanaieporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Contnbégrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sgamg Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management ionssple for maintaining effective internal contoser financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting. Our responsibility iségpress an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivenes& @dmpany’s internal control over financial repagtbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordver financial reporting, evaluating
management s assessment, testing and evaluatidgslgn and operating effectiveness of internatrobrand performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the @tanoes. We believe that our audit provides a redde basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal control over firéad reporting includes those policies and procedudhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainiy reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jde reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Companyseds that could have a material effect on thenéiiad statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that thep@oy maintained effective internal control oveaficial reporting as of December 31,
2006 is fairly stated, in all material respectssdzhon criteria established in Internal Controegrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mateeapects, effective internal control over finalceporting as of December 31, 2006,
based on criteria established in Internal Contnbégrated Framework issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the balance shi
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the relagehstnts of operations, changes in stockholdeedicft)/equity , and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@16, and our report dated March 2, 2007, expdeasainqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

/sl Stegman & Compar
Baltimore, Marylanc
March 26, 200°
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celsion Corporation
Columbia, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying balance sheélslsion Corporation (the Company) as of DecembePB@6 and 2005, and the related
statements of operations, changes in stockhol@gesicit)/equity, and cash flows for each of thesthyears in the period ended December 31,
2006. These financial statements are the respditsitfi the Company’s management. Our responsibititto express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Celsion Corporation as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results apierations and its cash flows for each of theetlyears in the period ended
December 31, 2006 in conformity with accountingipifples generally accepted in the United StateSnoérica.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financigboeting as of December 31, 2006, based on crig=tablished in Internal Contrbttegratec
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) andeport dated March 2, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion on managemensssasent of internal control over financial repaytand an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting.

/sl Stegman & Compar
Baltimore, Marylanc
March 26, 200°
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CELSION CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Short term investmen
Accounts receivabl- trade
Other receivable
Inventories
Prepaid Expense
Escrow accour- license fee

Total current asse

Property and equipment - at cost
Furniture and office equipme
Computer hardware and softwz
Laboratory and shop equipme
Leasehold improvemen

Less: Accumulated depreciati
Net value of property and equipme
Other assets
Investment in Celsion China, Lt
Advances under Celsion Canada, Ltd. transitioneagest
Note receivablt
Note receivable- accrued interes
Escrow accour- license fee
Deposits
Patent licensing fee (net of accumulated amortimadf $1,875
Total other asse!
Total assets

December 31,

December 31,

2006 2005
$ 1,032,67. $ 2,313,43
8,000,001 6,000,001
1,882,37. 715,71
21,67¢ 49,79¢
2,830,54! 3,325,64!
430,49: 436,52:
1,824,74 —
16,022,50 12,841,10
185,87 182,17:
317,39 304,52:
755,48 656,67t
132,14t 132,14t
1,390,89 1,275,571
875,83 704,66:
515,06: 570,85!
— 11,99¢
583,32: —
1,038,411 —
43,19( —
— 2,053,15:
653,93: 432,33!
73,12¢ —
2,391,98 2,497,48.

$18,929,55 $15,909,44
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CELSION CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

(continued)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payabl- trade
Other accrued liabilitie
Accrued no-cash compensatic
Current portion of deferred reven
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Deferred revenu- license fee
Loan payable principal
Loan payable interest
Other liabilities
Total lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' (deficit) equity (1)
Common stock - $0.01 par value (250,000,000 shartworized; 10,739,804 shares and
10,726,177 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&hp2006 and 2005, respectivel
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Total stockholder (deficit) equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ (deficit) equity

See accompanying notes.

December 31,

December 31,

2006 2005
$ 2,135600 $ 1,996,15:
1,291,46! 1,317,87!
9,50( 10,13:
571,42 571,42t
4,008,00: 3,895,59.
1,809,52: 2,380,95:
15,000,00 6,000,001
1,277,69 177,62
35,15: 29,77:
18,122,37 8,588,35.
22,130,37 12,483,94
107,39¢ 107,26:
87,178,59 86,220,81
(90,486,81)  (82,902,58)
(3,200,82) 3,425,491
$18,92955  $15,909,44

(1) Share information has been adjusted to givecetb the February 27, 2006 15:1 reverse stoékasplf it occurred at the beginning of

the earliest period presentt
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 209

Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

Revenues

Sales of equipment and pa $11,624,67 $12,458,86 $ 2,506,22!

Returns and allowanct 373,85¢ 138,72. —

Total revenue 11,250,81 12,320,14 2,506,22!
Cost of sale: 6,669,07! 8,112,76! 2,100,88!
Gross profit 4,581,74. 4,207,38. 405,34(
Operating expense

Research and developmt 9,345,38: 10,081,48 11,533,42

General and administrati 3,722,99 3,405,40! 3,470,86!

Total operating expens 13,068,37 13,486,89 15,004,29
Loss from operation (8,486,63)) (9,279,51)  (14,598,95)
Other income (expense

Gain on the sale of Celsion (Canada) | 1,011,92. — —

License fee income amortizati 571,42¢ 571,42¢ 476,19:

Other expense, n (213,869 (96,89) (92,207
Interest incom 636,56 299,24! 229,91
Interest expens (1,103,649 (179,59) —
Loss before income tax (7,584,23)) (8,685,31)  (13,985,04)
Income taxe: — — —
Net loss $(7,584,23) $(8,685,31) $(13,985,04)
Net loss per common share (basic and diluted $ 0.7) % (0.8) $ (1.39
Weighted average shares outstanding 10,728,43 10,725,09 10,583,77

(1) Adjusted to reflect the 15:1 reverse split @biriary 27, 2006 as if it occurred at the beginmhthe earliest period presented.

See accompanying notes.
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss for the yee
Non-cash items included in net lo¢
Depreciation and Amortizatic
Gain in sale of Celsion Cana
Stock based compensati- Options
Stock based compensati- Restricted Stoc
Amortization of deferred license fi
Loss from investment in Celsion China, |
Shares issued in exchange for serv
Stock options issued in exchange for serv
Executive repriced optior
Amortization of patent licens
Loss from disposal of property and equipm
Other liabilities
Net changes ir
Accounts receivab-trade
Other receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenst
Escrow accour-license fee
Prepaid inventory development co
Note receivable accrued interes
Deposits
Deferred revenu- license fee
Accounts payable and accrued inte
Accrued no-cash compensatic
Other accrued liabilitie
Net cash used in operating activitie
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of short term investme
Sale of sho-term investment
Advances under Celsion Canada transition agree
Investment in Celsion China, Lt
Purchase of patent licen
Purchase of property and equipm
Other
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in loan payakb
Fractional share payme
Proceeds of stock issuanc
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yei

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

Cash paid for:
Interest
Income taxe:

See accompanying notes

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
$ (7,584,23) $(8,685,31) $(13,985,04)
228,26: 250,03 200,51
(1,011,92) — —
838,60: — —
74,20 — —
(571,429 (571,429 (476,19)
207,68 95,80: 92,20:
47 49¢ 78,53¢ 200,76
— 17,997 496,22:
— — (1,030,68)
1,87¢ — —
12,58¢ 1,08¢ —
— 29,77: —
(1,201,65) (23,776 (691,93
(11,829 41,30: (74,349
543,74¢  (1,123,97)  (1,283,95)
6,021 242,71 (317,27
228,41 (46,15)  (2,007,00)
— 58,21 359,23¢
(43,190 — —
(221,590) (414,629 5,91¢
— — 4,000,001
1,246,15.  1,354,61( 188,07
(632) — (99,779
(21,36¢) 633,32 482,12
(7,232,79)  (8,061,87)  (13,941,15)
(12,000,00)  (6,000,00)  (4,897,43)
10,000,00  9,900,44( —
(583,32)) —
(196,78) — (200,00()
(75,000 —
(187,81) (108,51¢) (484,05()
(2,647 —
(3,045,56)  3,791,92: (5,581,49)
9,000,000 6,000,001 —
(2,397 — —
— — 12,836,62
8,997,60. 6,000,000  12,836,62
(1,280,75)  1,730,05. (6,686,03)
2,313,43 583,37t 7,269,40
$ 103267 $231343 $ 583,37
$ — $ — $ —
$ — $ — $ —
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CELSION CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'’ (DEFICIT)/EQ UITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

Balance at January 1, 20

Sale of common stoc

Exercise of common stock warrants and opti

Shares and Stock Options issued in exchange foices

Effect of repriced option

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Shares and Stock Options issued in exchange foices

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Stock-based compensation expense related to engpédgek
options

Shares issued in exchange for serv

Restricted stock expen

Fractional share payme

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2C

Common Stock A(é)(j;it(lﬁir;]al Accumulated

Shares Total Capital Deficit Total
9,868,41! $ 98,68¢ $73,586,52 $(60,232,21) $13,452,99
405,63 4,05¢ 8,755,94. — 8,760,001
426,91: 4,26¢ 4,072,35: — 4,076,62.
15,08: 151 696,83( — 696,98
— —  (1,030,68) — (1,030,68)
— — — (13,985,04) (13,985,04)
10,716,04 107,16. 86,080,97 (74,217,26) 11,970,86
10,13; 101 139,84° — 139,94¢
— — — (8,685,31)  (8,685,31)
10,726,17 107,26: 86,220,81 (82,902,58) 3,425,491
838,60: — 838,60:
13,62° 13€ 47,36 — 47,49¢
— — 74,20¢ — 74,20¢
— — (2,397 — (2,397
— — — (7,584,23)  (7,584,23)
10,739,80. $107,39¢ $87,178,59  $(90,486,81) $ (3,200,82)

(1) Shares outstanding and share amounts adjustetléct the 15:1 reverse split on February 2D628s if it had occurred at the beginnin

the earliest period presented.

See accompanying notes.
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CELSION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description Of Business

Celsion Corporation, referred to herein as “Celsmmn‘the Company,” a Delaware corporation base@alumbia, Maryland, is a
biotechnology company dedicated to furthering teeatbpment and commercialization of treatment sgstéor cancer and other diseases
using focused heat energy in combination with otherapeutic devices, heat-activated drugs or aetitated genes.

On February 19, 2004 Celsion received premarketpggoval (PMA) from the Food and Drug Administrati@-DA) for its Prolieve
Thermodilatation system for the treatment of Beriigostatic Hyperplasia (BPH), a chronic conditidriolargement of the prostate common
in older men. The Prolieve system is currently geirarketed through our licensed distributor, Bos$eientific Corporation.

In addition, Celsion is currently conducting Phasknical trials of (i) a treatment for liver caecusing a combination of ThermoDox, a
proprietary encapsulation of doxorubicin, a comrnancer-treating drug, in a heattivated liposome which Celsion licenses exclugifrem
Duke University, and Radio Frequency Ablation, é&/ARand (ii) a treatment for recurrent chest wadldst cancer using a combination of
ThermoDox and microwave heat.

Basis Of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd in accordance with United States generatlgated accounting principles and
include the accounts of the Company and its mgjanitned subsidiaries. All significant intercompangnsactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation. As described in Not¢ghd Company owned 71.3% of the outstanding shar€glsion China, Ltd until the
second quarter of 2006 and a 100% ownership iriterélse outstanding shares of Celsion (Canada)ftedn August 2005 until January
2006. The results of operations from these sub#édiare consolidated in these financial statemfenthe periods during which such
ownership was held. The Company sold 100% of thstaoding shares of Celsion (Canada) Ltd. durieditist quarter of 2006 and
terminated its interest in Celsion China, Ltd. dgrthe second quarter of 2006 and, accordinglys do¢ own any subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hantheestments purchased with an original maturityhofe months or less. These funds are
not covered by FDIC insurance.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of financial instruments apjrate their respective fair values.

F-9
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CELSION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(continued)

Short Term Investments

The Company classifies its investments in marketabturities with readily determinable fair valasinvestments available-for-sale in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitep8ards (SFAS) No. 115 Atcounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities”. Available-for-sale securities consist of debtlaquity securities not classified as trading séiesror as securities to be held to
maturity. The Company has classified all of itsastments as available-for-sale. Unrealized holdiigs and losses on available-for-sale
securities are reported as a net amount in accuetddgher comprehensive gain or loss in stockhsldsguity until realized. Gains and losses
on the sale of available-for-sale securities aterd@ned using the specific identification method.

The Company’s short term investments consist oftibndRate Certificates and Auction Preferred Sdimsi Auction Rate Certificates are
municipal bonds which pay interest at a floatintg iget periodically, usually 7, 28 or 35 days. AarctPreferred Securities are issued by
closed end bond funds and pay dividends every oy &5 days. Increases or withdrawals from investsiean take place every 7, 28 or 35
days. Both investment vehicles are rated A1P1 cawialgoaper equivalents, trade at par and do ne¢ Bagnificant market fluctuations. The
carrying values of the Company’s short-term investta approximate their respective fair values.

Accounts Receivable - Trade

Amounts due Celsion from the sale of Prolieve aantnits and catheter kits comprise the entirerisdaof Accounts Receivable—Trade.
These amounts are due from Boston Scientific. Thva@any believes that the full value of its accowat®ivable balance will be collected,
and accordingly has not established an allowancddubtful accounts.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or etaifRrolieve control units are tracked by seriahbar and cost is the actual cost of each unit.
Catheter kits are carried at average cost. Thera@ageneral and administrative costs includeténcarrying value. An inventory reserve has
been established to reflect the estimated valexoéss and obsolete inventory. A reserve for obsaled excess inventories of $7,009 and
$39,706 was recorded as of December 31, 2006 =Bfl 28spectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depieni& provided over the estimated useful liveshefrelated assets, ranging from three to
seven years, using the straight-line method. Magoewals and improvements are capitalized at cwsbedinary repairs and maintenance are
charged against operations as incurred. Deprepiatipense was $228,262, $218,762 and $190,79%&vs ended December 31, 2006, 2
2004, respectively.

The Company reviews property and equipment for impent whenever events or changes in circumstaindésate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. An asset sdmned impaired if its carrying amount exceedsftiiere net undiscounted cash flows that
the asset is expected to generate. If such assehsidered to be impaired, the impairment recaghizg the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset, if any, exceeds its fair vektermined using a discounted cash flow model.
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(continued)

Deposits

Deposits include real property security deposits @her deposits which are contractually requined af a long-term nature. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, deposits includedambalof approximately $373,000 which was held bijracal research organization in
connection with Celsion’s BPH PMA study. The stiglgnticipated to take 5 years to complete and deglosits is held against final billings.

Patent Licenses

The Company has purchased several licenses fdstiglpatented technologies. Patent license costaraortized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated life of the related patent. The wedlgaverage amortization period for these assdf8 years.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on Prolieve control unitheag are sold to ultimate customers by Boston SifienProlieve control units shipped to
Boston Scientific but not yet sold to ultimate awsers are reflected in finished goods inventoryvdRee on the sale of catheter kits is
recognized upon shipment to Boston Scientific.dAlCompany’s revenues for the years ended DeceBihe&006, 2005 and 204 were
derived from sales to Boston Scientific, a Unitedt&s based corporation.

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130Reporting Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for the reporting andalispl comprehensive income and its
components in the Compasytonsolidated financial statements. The objecV@FAS No. 130 is to report a measure (comprekenscoms
(loss)) of all changes in equity of an enterprisa result from transactions and other economiotsvie a period other than transactions with
owners. The Company had no unrealized gains oe$oss short-term investments available-for-salétferyears ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes the inventory carrying vafigems sold, shipping and handling, miscellareeproduction costs, excess and
obsolescence costs and warranty expenses.

Product Warranties

Celsion warrants Prolieve control units for a penxd 12 months from date of delivery to the endras®l catheter kits until the date of
expiration. Warranty exposure is reviewed and adsruf any, are included in cost of sales. The @any has accrued a warranty reserve
December 31, 2006 and 2005 in the amount of $15,000

Research and Devel opment

Research and development costs are expensed adhdtquipment and facilities acquired for reskaned development activities that have
alternative future uses are capitalized and chatgespense over their estimated useful lives.
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(continued)

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net loss per common share wapuotad by dividing net loss for the year by the vintégl average number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding during each period. ThEaghof Common Stock equivalents has been exclirdedthe computation of diluted
weighted average common shares outstanding, asefifeit is anti-dilutive. Net loss per share hasrbadjusted to reflect the 15:1 reverse
split effective February 27, 2006 as if it had aced at the beginning of the earliest period presskn

Nonmonetary Transactions

Nonmonetary transactions are accounted for in a@erme with Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opmido. 29, Accounting fo
Nonmonetary Transactions, which provides that thesfer or distribution of a nonmonetary assetatnility generally is based on the fi
value of the asset or liability that is receivedsarrendered, whichever is more clearly evident.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae reported amounts of assets and liatsliied disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statememtsl the reported amounts of revenues and expdnseg the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Sock-Based Compensation

As more fully described in Note 8, the Company twas stock option plans that provide for non-quatlifiand incentive stock options to be
issued to directors, officers, employees and caastd the 2004 Employee Stock Plan (the “2004 Rland the 2001 Stock Option Plan (the
“2001 Plan”).

Prior to January 1, 2006, the company accountedgtions issued under the plans under the recogrétind measurement provisions of APB
Opinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, as permitted by FAEBement No. 123\ccounting

for Stock-Based Compensation . No stock-based compensation cost related to graplstock options was recognized in the Statenfent o
Operations for the years ended December 31, 2088@¢ as all options granted under the plans hagkarcise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the datgraht.

Effective January 1, 2006, the company adopteddihealue recognition provisions of FASB StatemBiot 123(R),Share-Based Payment ,
using the modified-prospective-transition methoddek that transition method, compensation costgrized in the year ended December 31,
2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all stea®ed payments granted prior to, but not yet vestenf December 31, 2005, based on the
grant date fair value estimated in accordance thithoriginal provisions of Statement 123, and (aphpensation cost for all share-based
payments granted subsequent to January 1, 200&] basthe grant-date fair value estimated in acurd with the provisions of Statement
123(R). Financial results for the years ended Déegrl, 2005 and 2004 have not been restated.

As a result of adopting Statement 123(R) on Janlia?p06, the company’s loss before income taxdsatloss for the year ended
December 31, 2006, are $838,602 higher than ddt¢ontinued to account for share-based compensatider Opinion 25. As a result of
adopting Statement 123(R) on January 1, 2006,dh®any’s reported basic and diluted loss per stoarihe year ended December 31, 2006,
are $0.08 higher than if it had continued to ac¢doinshare-based compensation under Opinion 28.aHoption of SFAS 123(R) did not
affect the Company’s cash flows from operationsash flows from financing activities.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued Interpretation 48 “Accounting for Unaértty in Income Taxes — An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“Intexfation 48”) which clarifies the accounting for eninty in income taxes recognized in
accordance with FASB Statement 109, Accountingrfoome Taxes. This interpretation prescribes ageition threshold and measurement
attribute for the financial statement recognitionl aneasurement of a tax position taken in a taxmefhe interpretation also provides
guidance on derecognition, classification, inteegst penalties, accounting for interim periods¢ldisure and transition and is effective for
periods beginning after December 31, 2006. As dised in Note 5, the Company has substantial neatipg loss carryforwards that are fu
reserved and that are available to reduce itsdutaxable income. As a result, the Company doebel@ve that the adoption of Interpretat
48 will have a material effect on the Company’aitissof operations, financial condition or liquiglit

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standardsrdassued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes andrEorrections, a Replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”. SF&& establishes, unless impracticable, retrospeafdplication as the required
method for reporting a change in the accountinggiple in the absence of explicit transition requients specific to a newly adopted
accounting principle. Previously, most changescitoanting principle were recognized by including ttumulative effect of changing to the
new accounting principle in net income for the pdrof change. SFAS 154 carries forward the guidameéd®B Opinion 20 “Accounting
Changes”, requiring justification of a change ie@mting principle on the basis of preferabilityzAS 154 also carries forward without
change the guidance contained in APB Opinion 20refporting the correction of an error in previguisisued financial statements and for a
change in an accounting estimate. The adoptio-8fSSNo. 154 on January 1, 2006 did not significaittipact the Company’s financial
statements.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stashsi&oard issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value Measurasiewhich defines fair value,
establishes a framework for consistently measuairgralue under generally accepted accountingciplas, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effedtivéhe Company on January 1, 2008 and is not éggdeo have a significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements.

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard issued SFAS No. 159 “The Fair Value Optamrinancial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Including an amendment of FASB Stag#nNo. 115", SFAS No. 159 permits entities to deto measure eligible items at fair
value at specified election dates and report uimedilgains and losses on items for which the falue option has been elected in earnings at
each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159éstefé for fiscal years beginning after November2®)7 and is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company’s financial stadats.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts for the years ended December ¥, 28d 2005 have been reclassified to conformegthsentation adopted for 2006.
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2. FINANCIAL CONDITION

Since inception, the Company has incurred substlampierating losses, principally from expensescaged with the Company’s research and
development programs, clinical trials conducteddnnection with the Company’s treatment systemd,agplications and submissions to the
Food and Drug Administration. The Company beliehese expenditures are essential for the commizatiain of its technologies. As a
result of these expenditures, as well as genechhdministrative expenses, the Company has an adated deficit and a stockholders’

deficit $90.5 million and $3.2 million, respectiyebs of December 31, 2006.

The Company expects its operating losses to camfiouthe foreseeable future as it continues ibslpct development efforts, and undertakes
marketing and sales activities. The Company’s tghiti achieve profitability is dependent upon ibéliy to obtain governmental approvals,
produce, and market and sell its new products.&ban be no assurance that the Company will betalglemmercialize its technology
successfully or that profitability will ever be aehed. The operating results of the Company hawedhted significantly in the past. The
Company expects that its operating results wilttihate significantly in the future and will depemda number of factors, many of which are
outside the Company’s control.

The Company will need substantial additional fugdimorder to complete the development, testing@mmercialization of its cancer
treatment products. Celsion has made a significammitment to heat-activated liposome researchdawdlopment projects and it is the
Company’s intention at least to maintain, and dagsncrease, the pace and scope of these activilize commitment to these new projects
will require additional external funding, at leasttil the Company is able to generate sufficieshciow from sale of one or more of its
products to support its continued operations. Manant believes that adequate funding is availabla tash resources on hand at
December 31, 2006 and income generated from sdteotitve control units and catheter kits to fupe@tions as least through the end of
2007.

If adequate funding is not available, the Compamy tme required to delay, scale back or eliminateateaspects of its operations or attempt
to obtain funds through unfavorable arrangementis partners or others that may force it to relisguiights to certain of its technologies,
products or potential markets or that could impmserous financial or other terms. Furthermorehéf Company cannot fund its ongoing
development and other operating requirements,qoudaitly those associated with our obligations todiect clinical trials under its licensing
agreements, it will be in breach of these licensiggeements and could therefore lose its licemggs;i which could have material adverse
effects on its business. Management is continusgfforts to obtain additional funds so that trerpany can meet its obligations and sus
operations.

The Company has also received notice from The AsaarStock Exchange (AMEX) that the AMEX has deteadithat the Company is not
in compliance with certain conditions of the contd listing standards of Section 1003 of the AMEXqPany Guide. See Note 8.
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3. INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or ®etaakd consist of the following at December 31:

2006 2005
Componentt $ 29,39¢ $ 535,25
Finished good 2,808,15! 2,830,09:

2,837,55i 3,365,341
Less: Reserve for obsolete and excess invel (7,009 (39,706)

$2,830,54 $3,325,64

4. INVESTMENTS
Celsion China, Ltd.

On December 15, 2003 Celsion announced the formafia joint venture with Asia Pacific Life ScienGeoup, Ltd., a Hong Kong-based
investment company. Celsion invested $200,000 toh@se a 45.65% equity position in Celsion Chirtd, bn February 5, 2004 and made an
additional $25,000 investment in the equity of @gl<China in January 2006, bringing Celsion’s egoitvnership to 71.3%. An additional
cash advance was made to Celsion China amounti$@4td 23 on January 12, 2006 in the form of a loan.

During the second quarter of 2006, Celsion terneihdits interest in Celsion China Ltd, and wroteaiffbalances associated with the
investment. The loss recorded on the investmenthtyear ended December 31, 2006, including firssolution expenses, amounted to
$207,687.

Celsion Canada

On August 25, 2005, the Company formed Celsion édahLimited (“Celsion Canada”), a 100%-owned stiasy, to hold all the tangible

and intangible assets related to its Adaptive PAaissey (APA) technology for the treatment of breeatcer. Such subsidiary conducted no
financial transactions, but was consolidated fappees of financial reporting. On January 16, 2006 Company sold 100% of the
outstanding shares of Celsion Canada to Dr. Augeisti Cheung, Celsion’s founder and former Pregjdeéhief Executive Officer and
Director, in exchange for a non-interest bearinghpssory note of $1,500,000 to be paid over 78 marithe promissory note is secured by a
pledge of 100,536 shares of Celsion Common Stocledvioy Dr. Cheung and his wife. The promissory agtzues interest only in the event
that scheduled payments are in arrears. The Staah®se Agreement also provides for Celsion Catagay up to $18,500,000 in royalties
derived from a 5% royalty on net sales of certadpcts sold by, and patent royalties receiveddalsion Canada and its successors and
assigns.
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(continued)

The Company recorded proceeds from the sale ofd@eGanada of $1,146,428, representing the disedumtesent value of the promissory
note at January 16, 2006 (such present value eddcliht 8.25%, or prime rate at January 16, 2006 qme percent.) During the quarter ended
June 30, 2006, Celsion reduced the value of the meaeivable by $96,919, in exchange for Dr. Chi&uagreement to forgo a bonus payment
for the year ended December 31, 2005 due undemiidoyment agreement as Chief Scientific Officethef Company. The employment
contract was terminated on January 16, 2006 athwiitite the Company and Dr. Cheung also enteredaiign-year consulting services
agreement pursuant to which Dr. Cheung will pro\ddetain services to the Company in exchange faraual retainer of $100,000, payable
on a quarterly basis, and additional per diem artsohat least $60,000 per year.

The Company recorded a net gain on sale of CeBamada of $1,011,923 during the year ended Decegih@006. The Company also
recorded interest income on the promissory not¢i®ryear ended December 31, 2006 of $43,190. €kescheduled payment is due
June 30, 2008 with additional payments due everymsinths thereafter through December 31, 2010.

In conjunction with the sale of Celsion (Canadapitéd, the buyer and Celsion entered into a TramsBervices Agreement pursuant to
which Celsion agreed to (a) sublet space in the @amy's offices for use by Canada to carry on itsitess for a period of up to six months
from the date of the agreement; (b) provide adrriisze support services as needed in the operafi@anada’s business for the period of
the sublease and (c) advance funds to pay saldripe@alth and dental insurance for certain emplogé€elsion Canada and, in addition, pay
expenses reasonably incurred in connection witloffezation of Canada’s business up to $100,00théoshorter of the period ending

June 30, 2006 or the date of closing by Celsiona@arof a transaction involving the merger of Cariattaa newly created Canadian Capital
Pool Company and a simultaneous funding througtivate placement of shares under terms approveteyoronto Stock Exchange (the
“Canada Transaction”).

The Transition Services Agreement was amended aohv28, 2006 to advance Celsion (Canada) Limiteddatitional $200,000 to fund
reasonable operating expenses. This additionalnaévia repayable under the same terms as the fioenServices Agreement. However, in
the event of default, Dr. Cheung will forgo payngedtie under the consulting agreement between @dlxgporation and Dr. Cheung dated
January 16, 2006. The cumulative balance advaneeeruhe Transition Services Agreement, as ameraddaecember 31, 2006 was
$583,322, including accrued interest on the balalveeunder the Transition Services Agreement of %8l

The Canada Transaction did not close by Decemhe2@I6. Based on discussions with Canada manage@®elston management
established that diligent efforts were being magl€hanada management to close the Canada Transaat@timely basis and agreed to
extend the due date for repayment of the loandatrlier of the closing of the Canada Transacatiodune 30, 2007. Within ten days after the
closing of the Canada Transaction, Canada willtheyCompany all amounts due under the Transitioni&es Agreement.
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5. INCOME TAXES
A reconciliation of the Company’s statutory taxeréd the effective rate for the years ended Dece®@be2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Federal statutory ra: 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State taxes, net of federal tax ben 4.€ 4.€ 4.€
Valuation allowanct (38.€) (38.6) (38.6

0% 0.C% 0.C%

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had net dpgrkitss carry forwards of approximately $77,900,88r federal income tax purposes
that are available to offset future taxable incahreugh the year 2027.

Expiration
Approximate Amount Of Unused During
Operating Loss Carryforwards Year Ended
$ 60,000 12/31/200¢

1,390,000  12/31/201C
1,900,001 12/31/2011
3,050,000  12/31/201z
3,900,000  12/31/201%
2,400,000  12/31/201¢
4,500,000 12/31/202C
6,500,001 12/31/2021
9,500,001  12/31/202z
12,000,00  12/31/202:%
2,300,000  12/31/202¢
15,600,00  12/31/202t
8,200,001  12/31/202¢
6,600,000  12/31/2027

$ 77,900,00
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The components of the Company’s deferred tax asset December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

As of December 31,

2006 2005

Net operating loss carry forwar $ 30,095,00 $ 27,700,00
Compensation expense related to employee stocting 353,00 —

30,448,00 27,700,00

Valuation allowanct (30,448,00) (27,700,00)
$ = $ =

The evaluation of the realizability of such defdrtax assets in future periods is made based upariety of factors that affect the

Company’s ability to generate future taxable incomueh as intent and ability to sell assets anwticzal and projected operating

performance. At this time, the Company has estiadtisa valuation reserve for all of its deferreddagets. Such tax assets are available to be
recognized and benefit future periods.

6. CELSION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Celsion maintains a defined-contribution plan urslection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Tlae povers substantially all employees
over the age of 21. Participating employees magrdeportion of their pretax earnings, up to thermal Revenue Service annual contribu
limit. No employer contributions have been madthplan since its inception.

Celsion also has established Flexible SpendingbmpEndent Care Accounts allowing voluntary parétign. Participating employees can
elect to use pretax dollars, for preset, cappedgliadeductions. These deductions are to be utllizg the employee for qualified out-of-
pocket medical expenses and qualified dependeetecqrenses.

7. TRANSACTIONS WITH BOSTON SCIENTIFIC CORPORATION
Distribution Agreement

Celsion entered into a Distribution Agreement vdibston Scientific Corporation (Boston ScientificR8C) as of January 21, 2003 pursuant
to which the Company granted Boston Scientific esitle rights to market and distribute the Prolisystem and its component parts for the
treatment of BPH in all territories other than Ghiraiwan, Hong Kong, Macao, Mexico and Central 8adth America. The Distribution
Agreement has a seven-year term commencing on &esh2d, 2004. The parties share gross sales (tes¢s and expenses) attributable to the
product.

Celsion received a $4,000,000 licensing fee urftkeDtistribution Agreement which was paid in twotatinents. The first installment of
$2,000,000 was paid to Celsion during the quarieded June 30, 2004. The second installment of $2000 was placed in an interest bea
escrow account for a period of 36 months beginfiagruary 21, 2004 for payment of any legal expersstiements, license fees, royalties,
damages or judgments incurred by Celsion or BoSwentific in connection with any patent litigatioglated to alleged infringement of third
party patents. Interest on the escrowed fundgasned in escrow and accrued to the benefit ofi@elsThe balance remaining in the escrow
was released to Celsion on February 20, 2007 agdi taspurchase a license from AMS and pay finallegsts. The Company remains liable
for all defense costs so long as it owns the Rrel@oduct.
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The Company is recognizing the entire $4,000,08nking fee at the rate of $47,619 per month owevan-year term which began March 1,
2004. Interest earned in the escrow account isgrézed monthly by Celsion.

Transaction Agreement

The Company and BSC entered into a Transactionehgeat on January 21, 2003 pursuant to which BS€eaigio purchase Common She
of the Company’s upon attainment of specified ndlees by Celsion. On January 21, 2003, BSC purch@2g,023 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock for $5,000,000. On March 2, 2004, B8fchased 138,889 shares of the Company’s Comnuak 8ir $4,000,000. On

April 7, 2004, BSC purchased 84,925 shares of tmany’s Common Stock for $2,000,000. As of Decandie 2006, Boston Scientific
beneficially owned approximately 7.9% (unauditefijh@ Company’s Common Stock.

The Company has also granted BSC an exclusiverofiiipurchase the Prolieve Assets for a fixed pofc®60,000,000. This option is
exercisable for a period of five years, expirind-gbruary 2009. Additionally, for a period of upsven years, the Company has granted
Boston Scientific the right to (i) match any unsitéd offer that the Company may receive for areoproduct developed by the Company
and (ii) make a written offer to the Company in &went the Company desires to sell, license oribiige any product developed by it.

Loan Agreement

On August 8, 2005, Celsion Corporation and Bostcier8ific entered into the First Amendment to thrafsaction Agreement (the First
Amendment) pursuant to which BSC agreed to lencCitrapany up to $15,000,000 (the Loan) to be evieedity one or more convertible
secured promissory notes. The first installmer&000,000 was disbursed on August 17, 2005. Ttenskinstallment of $4,500,000 was
disbursed on February 2, 2006, and the third d&huent of $4,500,000 was disbursed on July 28,.2006

The promissory notes issued under this loan agnetarne repayable on February 28, 2009 and accteeest at a rate of prime rate plus one
percent. The maturity date of the loan is acceder@t the event BSC exercises its option to purehias Prolieve Assets. The loan is secured
by a continuing security interest in the Compamight, title and interest in the Prolieve Assetmsisting of substantially all of the trade
accounts receivable, inventories and intellectuaperty owned by the Company at December 31, 2006.

BSC may, at any time, convert in whole or in phaé putstanding loan balance plus accrued intemesshares of the Company’s common
stock at a minimum conversion price of $9.15 parshAdditionally, BSC may apply the outstandinmgipal plus accrued interest on the
Note toward the Option Exercise Price (as defimetthé Transaction Agreement) if BSC decides to@serthe option granted to BSC uni
the Transaction Agreement relating to the assetgerhnology with respect to the Company’s Proligraduct.

The Company has the right to prepay the loan atiamywithout penalty.
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8. STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT)/EQUITY
Common Stock
Reverse stock split

On February 27, 2006, the Company affected a Euérse stock split of the Company’s issued andauting shares of Common Stock. As
of that date, each fifteen shares of the Compasgised and outstanding shares of Common Stock avgoenatically combined, converted
and changed into one share of Common Stock of tmep@ny (the Reverse Split). No fractional shareevssued as a result of the Reverse
Split. Instead, the Company paid cash in lieu attional shares based on the average closing @frite Company’s Common Stock for the
five trading days prior to the effective date of RReverse Split. Unless otherwise noted hereirshate numbers and per share financial
information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K @resented after giving effect to the reverse sgmtk.

American Stock Exchange listing

On June 14, 2006, Celsion received notice from Aimerican Stock Exchange (AMEX) that the AMEX hadestenined that the Company
was not in compliance with certain conditions af tontinued listing standards of Section 1003 efAMEX Company Guide. Specifically,
the AMEX noted that the Company’s shareholdersitgquas less than $4,000,000 and losses from coingnoperations and/or net losses
were incurred in three of the last four fiscal yeand that shareholdeesjuity was less than $6,000,000 and losses frorintomg operation
and/or net losses were incurred in each of thdfilasfiscal years. Additionally, the Company'’s sklaolders’ equity was less than $2,000,000
and losses from continuing operations and/or restds were incurred in two of its three most refisoal years.

Pursuant to the notice dated June 14, 2006, thep@oynwas afforded the opportunity to submit a hoompliance to the AMEX, and on
July 14, 2006, presented its plan to the AMEX. Qug#ést 31, 2006, the AMEX notified the Company thaiad accepted the Compasylan
of compliance and granted the Company an extensithDecember 14, 2007 to regain compliance whth ¢ontinued listing standards. The
Company will be subject to periodic review by theIEX staff during the extension period. Failure taka progress consistent with the plan
or to regain compliance with the continued liststgndards by the end of the extension period amddlt in the Company being delisted fr
the AMEX.

Employee Stock Options

The Company has long-term compensation plans #ratipthe granting of incentive awards in the fahstock options. Generally, the terms
of these plans require that the exercise price@bptions may not be less than the fair marketevaf Celsion’s Common Stock on the date
the options are granted. Options generally vest vaBous time frames or upon milestone accomplistiis. Some vest immediately. Others
vest over a period between one and five years.optiens generally expire ten years from the datihefgrant.
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2001 Stock Option Plan

In 2001, the Board of Directors adopted a stock [ite directors, officers and employees (the 20&hP The purpose of the 2001 Plan wa
promote long-term growth and profitability of Celsiby providing key people with incentives to impecstockholder value and contribute to
the growth and financial success of Celsion, anehible the company to attract, retain and rewsardest available persons for positions of
substantial responsibility.

The 2001 Plan permitted the granting of stock amiéncluding nonqualified stock options and indéemstock options qualifying under
Section 422 of the Code) and stock appreciatidmsigr any combination of the foregoing. During ylear that ended December 31, 2006,
21,336 options became available under the 2001 dMdrwere rolled into the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan

2004 Employee Stock Plan

In 2004, the Board of Directors adopted a stock [ite directors, officers and employees (the 20 Pthat provides for stock instrument:
be issued enabling the holder thereof to acquirai@on stock of the Company at prices determinechbyompany’s Board of Directors.
The purpose of the 2004 Plan is to promote the-teng growth and financial success of the Compartyenable the Company to attract,
retain and reward the best available persons fsitipns of substantial responsibility. The 2004rPpe@rmits the granting of awards in the fi
of incentive stock options, restricted stock, riegtd stock units, stock appreciation rights, pbemstock, and performance awards, or in any
combination of the foregoing. The 2004 Plan terri@aain 2014, 10 years from the date of the Plad@ption by the Company’s
stockholders.

The 2004 Plan permits the grant of options andeshfr up to 737,501 shares of the Compsu@ommon Stock (after adjustment for the
reverse stock split on February 27, 2006). At Ddman31, 2006, options to purchase 426,180 sharesavailable to be granted to
employees under the 2004 Plan.

The Company has issued stock options and warrarsployees, directors, vendors and debt holdgy8o@s and warrants are generally
granted at market value at the date of the grant.

Incentive stock options may be granted to purcishaees of Common Stock at a price not less thaboldfGhe fair market value of the
underlying shares on the date of grant, providetltthe exercise price of any incentive option gedrib an eligible employee owning more
than 10% of the outstanding stock must be at [EH3% of the such fair market value on the daterafig Only officers and key employees
may receive incentive stock options; all other digal participants may receive non-qualified stagkions.

Option awards vest upon terms determined by thedBofDirectors. Restricted stock awards, perforogastock awards and stock options
subject to accelerated vesting in the event ofeangh of control. The Company issues new sharesigdsits obligations from the exercise of
options.
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Options Issued to Consultants for Services

The Company periodically issues options to conatsdtan exchange for services provided. The faiuealf options granted is measured in
accordance with SFAS 123(R) using the Black-Schof¢®n pricing model and recorded as an expensigeiperiod in which such services
are received. Generally, the terms of these pleggire that the exercise price of such options n@iy\be less than the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock on the date the optiongiameted. Consultant options generally vest oveipbuartime frames or upon milestone
accomplishments. Some vest immediately upon issudrtee options generally expire 10 years from thte df grant.

There were no options granted to consultants arekpense recognized with respect to consultanbogfior the year ended December 31,
2006. The Company recognized $17,997 and $496,2@tpense associated with the issuance of optmusrisultants during the years en
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining

Contractual Aggregate
Average

Options Exercise Term (in Intrinsic
Stock Options QOutstanding Price years) Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 793,61: $ 10.2( o $ —
Granted 132,50( 13.3¢ — —
Exercisec (117,909 9.9C — —
Canceled or expire (44,327 11.7C — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 763,88 10.6¢ — —
Granted 568,01° 6.0C — —
Exercisec — — — —
Cancelled or expire (55,117 10.5( — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,276,79. 8.7(C — —
Granted 154,23¢ 4.04 — —
Exercisec — — — —
Cancelled or expire (559,149 8.1( — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 871,87¢ $ 8.4€ 6.8¢ $ —

(1) Options outstanding and weigh-average exercise prices have been adjusted tetréfle February 27, 2006 15:1 reverse stock
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Warrants

Celsion has warrants outstanding at December 315 28abling the holders thereof to purchase uy 898 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock at a weighted average exercise pfi$&483. The warrants were issued in exchangednsulting and financing services
provided in past years, including prior privategalments of equity securities. There was no compiensar other expense recorded for the
year ended December 31, 2006 related to warramssamaling.

The following is a summary of stock option and vaatractivity for the three years ended Decembef3Q6:

Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining

Contractual Aggregate
Average

Warrants Exercise Term (in Intrinsic
Warrants Outstanding Price years) Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 1,230,96. $ 13.5( o $ —
Granted 76,69¢ 20.2¢ — —
Exercisec (308,557 9.3( — —
Canceled or expire (6,067) 13.6¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 993,04( 15.3( — —
Granted 39 3.7t — —
Exercisec — — — —
Cancelled or expire (19,43) 27.3( — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 973,64 14.6¢€ — —
Granted — — — —
Exercisec — — — —
Cancelled or expire (302,75() 14.2¢ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 670,89¢ $ 14.8¢ 1.41 $ —

(1) Options outsanding and weigh-average exercise prices have been adjusted tetréfle February 27, 2006 15:1 reverse stock
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A summary of the stock options and warrants outitanas of December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Exercise Exercise Exercise Exercise
Price From Price From Price From Price From
$2.18 to $6.01 to $9.61t0 $13.81to
Common Stock Options $ 6.00 $9.60 $13.80 $22.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2006
Number of Option: 292,45¢ 308,53: 216,88¢ 54,00:
Weighted average exercise pr $ 4.8¢ $ 8.2 $ 11.27 $ 18.3(
Weighted average remaining contractual life (inrgg 8.0¢ 6.2€ 5.2¢ 6.0¢
Exerciseable at December 31, 2(
Number of Option: 159,51( 267,30t 212,37 36,00:
Weighted average exercise pr 5.5t 8.34 11.3(C 17.5¢
Weighted average remaining contractual life (inrgg 7.3 5.9¢ 5.22 6.51
Price Price Price
Warrants From From From
Outstanding at December 31, 2006
Number of Warrant 118,86! 162,64 389,39:
Weighted average exercise pr $ 7.5¢ $ 10.9¢ $ 18.6¢
Weighted average remaining contractual life (inrgg 1.14 1.62 1.7¢
Exerciseable at December 31, 2(
Number of Warrant 118,86! 162,64. 389,39:
Weighted average exercise pr $ 7.5€ $ 10.9¢ $ 18.6¢€
Weighted average remaining contractual life (inrgg 1.14 1.6 1.7¢

(1) Options outstanding and weigh-average exercise prices have been adjusted tetréfle February 27, 2006 15:1 reverse stock

Restricted Stock

A summary of the status of the Company’s nvested stock awards as of December 31, 2006 amdjebaluring the year ended Decembe

2006, is presented below:

Shares
Non-vested stock awards at January 1, 2 —
Granted 53,32
Vested —
Forfeited (26,879
Non-vested stock awards at December 31, 2 26,44

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date Fair

BB He

Value
3.9z

4.0¢
3.7¢€



Table of Contents

CELSION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(continued)

2002 Option Repricing

On March 25, 2002, in order to provide meaninghrtmuing stock-based incentives for members ofagament, and in recognition of the
decline in the market price of the Company’s Comi8tock, the Compensation Committee of the Boatidctors approved the
cancellation of options to purchase a total of 88&,shares of Common Stock held by certain keykexs and issued new options to
purchase a total of 210,000 shares, resultingnetalecrease of options to purchase 31,666 shiresancelled options had been issued to
the Company’s executives pursuant to their respeeimployment contracts at exercise prices in exgBthe current market price of the
Company’s Common Stock. These options consistegréin options vested at the time of cancellatiawell as options with vesting dates
through April of 2003, and with expiration datesatigh April of 2011. The new options consist ofrently vested compensatory options,
bonus options, one-third of which were currentigtee and the remainder of which vested on Marcl28@3 and 2004, and performance-
based awards that vest, if at all, upon achievenigrthe Company, of certain specified milestoadisf which expire in May of 2012. All of
the new options were issued pursuant to the CompadP1 Stock Option Plan, at exercise prices &b excess of the market price for the
common stock on the date of grant.

The Company accounts for the repriced options usam@ble accounting under FASB Interpretation 8. Accounting for Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation-An Intetgtion of APB Opinion No. 25. Consequently, dgréach reporting period the
Company adjusts compensation expense relatingetedsted portion of the repriced options to thewrixthat the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock exceeds the exercise pfiseoh options. The Company recognized compensatipense adjustments of $-0-,
$-0-, and $(1,030,684) for the years ended DeceBhe2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The congiemsexpense adjustment for the
year ending December 31, 2004 was negative du@éelane in the market value of the Comp’'s Common Stock, which declined from
$19.65 at the beginning of the year to $8.55 atedier 31, 2004. Since the exercise prices of tecetl options range from $9.60 to
$13.80, all previous compensation expense adjusgweere reversed during 2004.
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SFAS 123(R) stockased compensation expense

The following table illustrates the effect on netd and loss per share if the Company had appieetiatr value recognition provisions of
Statement 123 to options granted under the Compastgtk option plan for the years ended Decembe2@15 and 2004. For purposes of
this pro forma disclosure, the value of the optimnasstimated using a Black-Scholes option-pridorghula and amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting periods.

2005 2004
Net loss, as reporte $(8,658,31) $(13,985,04)
Deduct: Stoc-based compensation (income) expense included ortegpnet los: — (1,030,689
Total stocl-based employee compensation expense determinegithsifiair value method for all awar (914,50 559,58!
Pro forma net los $(9,572,82) $(14,456,14)
Loss per Common Share as reported

Basic $ (0.8) $ (1.39)

Diluted $ 0.8 ¢ (1.32)
Pro forma loss per Common Share:

Basic $ (0.89) $ (1.37)

Diluted $ 089 ¢ (1.37)

(1) Adjusted to reflect 15:1 reverse split on Februzify2006

The fair values of stock options granted were egith at the date of grant using the Black-Schghieio pricing model. The Black-Scholes
model was originally developed for use in estingtime fair value of traded options, which haveatiht characteristics from Celsion’s
nonqualified stock options. The model is also garesto changes in assumptions, which can matgrédfect the fair value estimate. The
Company used the following assumptions for deteimgitthe fair value of options granted under thecRi&choles option pricing model:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31 December 31
2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rat 4.30% to 4.96¢ 4.21% 3.62%
Expected volatility 83% 87.2% 93.4%
Expected life (in years 6 7 6
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.0(% 0.0(%

Expected volatilities utilized in the model are éd®n historical volatility of the Company’s staatice. The risk free interest rate is derived
from values assigned to U.S. Treasury strips afighda in the Wall Street Journal in effect at the
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time of grant. The model incorporates exercisesvesting and post-vesting forfeiture assumptiorsedaon analysis of historical data. The
expected life of the fiscal 2006 grants was geeerasing the simplified method as allowed undeu8ges and Exchange Commission Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107.

Total compensation cost charged related to empleigsk options amounted to $838,602 for the yededbecember 31, 2006. Such charge
has been recorded in Research and developmentsxpad General and administrative expense in thoeiais of $432,402 and $406,200,
respectively. Total compensation cost for sharethgmyment arrangements for the year ended Dece8tb2006, representing employee
compensation expense related to stock options andested stock, amounted to $912,808 ($-0- and391684 for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively). No cosgteoon cost related to shdrased payments arrangements was capitalized asfphe
cost of any asset at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

As of December 31, 2006, there was $671,981 of tmiiecognized compensation cost related to noadestiare-based compensation
arrangements. That cost is expected to be recatjoizer a weighted-average period of 0.76 year®édember 31, 2006, there were 842,376
options outstanding which were vested or expeateast at a weighted average exercise price o658 He weighted average remaining
contractual term of these options were 6.61 years.

The weighted average grant-date fair values obitns granted during the years ended Decembet(8B, 2005 and 2004 were $3.43,
$4.68 and $10.86, respectively. The total intringitue of options exercised during the year endecember 31, 2006 was $-0-.

See also Note 12.

Preferred Stock and Sockholder Rights Plan

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and Bysaauthorizes the issuance of “blank check” prefitstock by the Board of Directors, on
such terms as it determines and without furthesidtolder approval. The Company has also implemeatdckholder rights plan and
distributed rights to our stockholders. When thiglets become exercisable, these rights entitle bodders to purchase one share of our
Series C Junior Participating Preferred Stocki@e of $66.90 per one teheusandth of a share of Series C Preferred Stbahy person ¢
group acquires more than 15% of our Common Stdekhblders of rights (other than the person or gr@ossing the 15% threshold) will be
able to purchase, in exchange for the $66.90 eseepiice, $133.80 of our Common Stock or the std@ny company into which we are
merged

9. LICENSE AGREEMENTS AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

The Company owns three United States patents penggtio the treatment of enlarged prostrate ortatesancer. These three patents are all
being pursued internationally for patent right paiton in a number of territories. Additionally et@ompany has filed four other related pa
applications in the U.S. and overseas. With regatdposome patents licensed from Duke Univershg, Company has filed two additional
patents related to the formulation and use of pass. Further, in relation to the patents licerfemth Duke, the Company has licensed from
Valentis, CA certain global rights covering the a$g@egylation for temperature sensitive liposomes.

The MMTC and Duke license agreements each conliagsse fee, royalty and/or research support piawss testing and regulatory
milestones, and other performance requirementghiea€ompany must meet by certain deadlines witpaet to the use of the licensed
technologies. In conjunction with the patent haddéne Company intends to file international agglins for certain of the United States
patents.
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The Company entered into license agreements witiTh 1996 and 2002, for exclusive worldwide riglddMMTC's patents related to its
balloon compression technology for the treatmermrobtatic disease in humans. The exclusive rightier the MMTC license agreements
extend for the life of MMTC's patents. MMTC currgnhas patents in the United States and Canadatefims of these patents expire at
various times from April 2008 to November 2014abidition, MMTC also has patent applications pendingapan and Europe.

On November 10, 1999, the Company entered intcemdie agreement with Duke under which the Compaegived exclusive rights (subject
to certain exceptions) to commercialize and useeluthermo-liposome technology. The license agre¢mentains annual royalty and
minimum payment provisions and also requires nolestbased royalty payments measured by variougsgvanluding product development
stages, FDA applications and approvals, foreigrketarg approvals and achievement of significanésaHowever, in lieu of such milestone-
based cash payments, Duke agreed to accept slidhes@mpany’s Common Stock to be issued in ilmetaits at the time each milestone
payment is due, with each installment of shardsetoalculated at the average closing price of t@i@on Stock during the 20 trading days
prior to issuance. The total number of shares &sleco Duke under these provisions is subjectljosiment in certain cases, and Duke has
piggyback registration rights for public offerintgking place more than one year after the effectate of the license agreement. On
January 31, 2003, the Company issued 253,691 sbaémmmon Stock to Duke University valued at $3,000 as payment under this
licensing agreement.

The Company’s rights under our license agreemetit Bitke University extend for the longer of 20 ysear the term for which any relevant
patents are issued by the United States Paterfrad@émark Office. Currently, the Company has rightBuke’s patent for its thermo-
liposome technology in the United States, whichirexim 2018, and to future patents received by Dnk&anada, Europe, Japan and
Australia, where it has patent applications pendirige European application can result in coveragheé United Kingdom, France and
Germany. For this technology, license rights arddvade, with various patent rights covering theitdd States, Canada, the United
Kingdom, France, Germany and Japan.

10. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

On April 27, 2006 American Medical Systems, Inad &MS Research Corporation (together referred ttAd4S”) filed suit in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Minnesota allewj infringement of two patents of AMS resultingrfr@ur manufacture, use and sale of the
Prolieve Thermodilatation system. The suit is capd American Medical Systems, Inc. and AMS Re$e@arporation vs. Celsion
Corporation, Case no. 0:06-cv-01606-JMR-FLN. Theaglaint seeks injunctive relief against the alleggdngement, unspecified trebled
damages, plaintiff costs, expenses and attorney (e September 1, 2006 AMS amended the complilegiireg that Prolieve infringes two
additional AMS patents.

On February 7, 2007, Celsion entered into an ageaemith AMS that settled the patent dispute. Urttiersettlement terms, Celsion paid a
licensing fee and will pay a royalty based on safats Prolieve product to acquire a product leemo AMS’patents for the use of microwe
energy to treat BPH and prostatitis. The agreemedéd litigation between the two parties. The tesfrtbe license agreement will not have a
material impact on Celsion’s sales or gross marfjire agreement was also reached with the concw@BSC in accordance with the
Transaction Agreement between BSC and Celsion datedary 21, 2003 which granted BSC an option tolase the Prolieve Assets and
which required that Celsion obtain BSC's approvamto entering into agreements related to thdi®re business.

Under the Distribution Agreement with Boston Scigntescribed further in Note 7, an escrow accomas established during March 2004 to
provide available funds for payment of any legaglenses, settlements, license fees, royalties, desr@gudgments incurred by Celsion or
Boston Scientific in connection with any paterghtion related to alleged infringement of thirdtggatents occurring during the 36-month
term of the escrow. Celsion bears full responsibfbir payment of claims in excess of availableresed funds. Legal expenses in the ami

of $639,607 have been incurred for the year endszemMber 31, 2006, including $318,199 paid througbuisements from the escrow
account.
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Contract Ter mination Commitment

The Company entered into a Development and Supgigément with Catheter Research, Inc. (“CR”) far skipply of catheter kits and
related disposables on December 11, 2001. UndeSupply Agreement, CR is the exclusive providePuailieve catheter kits, subject to
stated minimum annual purchase obligations, aptloe and on the terms set forth therein. The Supgkeement provides for an initial term
of three years from the receipt of the Prolieve Pivtdn the FDA, with annual automatic renewals théer, subject to the right of either
party to terminate upon six months notice. The aigyent was amended on October 29, 2004 enablingp@étsterminate the Supply
Agreement at any time following notice to CR andmpayment of termination fees in the amount of0J00.

Celsion provided notice of its intent to terminateOctober 29, 2003 and paid $350,000 in respettteofermination fee during March 2004.
The remaining $350,000 is due and payable upon &@#oval of an alternative catheter manufacturboviang purchase of at least 2,000
catheter kits at an agreed upon price, as welégaia fees based on the average annual selling pficatheter kits to third-party end users.
As of December 31, 2006, Celsion has met its ofitigao purchase 2,000 catheter kits.

Contingent Purchase Commitment

Sanmina-SCIl (Sanmina) and Celsion entered into @ddeProduct Manufacturing Services Agreement pnil/2, 2003 for the production of
the Company’s Prolieve Thermodilatation controltsininder the terms of the agreement, Celsion finay time-totime, require Sanmina-
acquire component inventories in excess of cudentand. Such inventory purchased and held by Sanwilhbe designated as excess
inventory, and Celsion is responsible to reimb@aamina for the delivered cost of those components.

As of December 31, 2006, Celsion and Sanmina hgrexd that the excess components have an estineterlat $154,048 (December 31,
2005—%$499,244). In lieu of payment, Celsion agreepgay a 1.5% monthly inventory carrying chargeibeigg October 1, 2005. The
inventory carrying charge for the year ended Deeamli, 2006 amounted to $54,690 and has been extlasla component of cost of sales
(December 31, 2005—%$18,099).

Operating lease commitments

The following is a summary of the future minimunmta payments required under operating leaseshthat initial or remaining lease terms
of one year or more as of December 31, 2006:

For the year ending December :

2007 $222,03t
2008 206,21¢
2009 210,37¢
2010 179,65¢

2011 and beyon —
$818,28¢

Rent expense was $283,870, $275,771, and $2360020ef years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 andr28pdctively.
The Company believes it has sufficient office space facilities for the foreseeable future.
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11. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had a coratéirof credit represented by cash balances idarge financial institution that is not
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporafidditionally, the Company has a concentratioereflit risk as a result of accounts
receivable primarily due from Boston Scientific.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 3, 2007, Celsion announced the graant afducement stock option award to its new Chiefdative Officer enabling him to
purchase 430,000 shares of the Company’s Commark St per share exercise price equal to thengqgsiice of the common stock on
January 3, 2007. The closing price on such date$®at2. The stock option granted to Mr. Tardugnsivén four equal annual installments
commencing on the first anniversary of the gramé @ad is subject to forfeiture in the event ofgeation or termination for cause prior to
vesting. The grant was made outside of any Compgumity incentive plan or shares reserved for isseamder any such equity incentive
plan and in connection with Mr. Tardugno’s previgudisclosed appointment as, and as an induceroeihirh to serve as, President, Chief
Executive Officer and a member of the Board of Etives of the Company.

On February 7, 2007, the Company entered into sgeagent with AMS that settled the patent disputedés the settlement terms, Celsion
paid a licensing fee and will pay a royalty basadales of its Prolieve product to acquire a protioense to AMS’ patents for the use of
microwave energy to treat BPH and prostatitis. abeeement ended litigation between the two parfies.terms of the license agreement
not have a material impact on Celsion’s sales osgmargin. See Note 10.

On February 20, 2007, the Company received thesfimett in escrow under the Distribution Agreemeitih\Boston Scientific. See Note 7.
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13. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR TH E YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

(UNAUDITED)

2006

Second Third Fourth
First Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
Sales $2,346,41 $ 305,79( $4,122,900 $4,475,700 $11,250,81
Cost of sale: 1,754,50. 651,87: 1,903,14. 2,359,55! 6,669,07!
Gross profit 591,91¢ (346,08 2,219,76. 2,116,14! 4,581,74.
Research and development exper (2,482,499 (2,087,12) (2,337,26) (2,438,49)  (9,345,38)
General and administrative expen (1,127,49)  (1,020,08i) (849,749 (725,670  (3,722,99)
Gain on sale of Celsion (Canada) L 1,146,34. (134,419 — — 1,011,92.
Other income (expens 88,17 (135,06() (23,899 (38,747 (109,52)

Net Loss
Net loss per shai- basic and diluted (2

$(1,783,55) $(3,722,76)

$ (991,149 $(1,086,76) $(7,584,23)

$ (017 $  (0.39

$ (09 $ (010 $  (0.79)

2005

Second Third Fourth
First Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
Sales $1,870,15 $2,896,35 $ 3,205,820 $4,347,80¢ $12,320,14
Cost of sale: 1,271,84 1,926,70 2,186,64! 2,727,56 8,112,76!
Gross profit 598,30: 969,64 1,019,18 1,620,24! 4,207,38.
Research and development exper (2,218,59) (2,485,32) (2,293,56) (3,084,00) (10,081,48)
General and administrative expen (766,30()  (1,071,70) (810,24 (757,16 (3,405,40)
Other income 183,22: 183,46: 130,75. 96,75¢ 594,19:

Net Loss

$(2,203,36) $(2,403,92) $(1,953,86) $(2,124,16) $ (8,685,31)

Net loss per shar- basic and diluted (1 $ (0.2) % (0.22) $

(018 $ (020 $ (0.81)

(1) Adjusted to reflect 15:1 reverse split on Februzity200€

Stock-based compensation related to employee siotdns was as follows for the year ended Decer@he2006:

2006

First Second Third Fourth Total for
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Stocl-based compensation expense related to employdeatons included in
Research and developm $207,51: $ 52,16¢ $ 92,66: $80,05¢ $432,40:
General and administrative expel 148,91¢ 148,68: 162,060 (53,470 406,20(
Total $356,43. $200,85: $254,73( $ 26,58¢ $838,60:

There was no stockased compensation expense related to employdeattons included for the year ended Decembe8@5 because tl
Company did not adopt the fair value recognitioovions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Bassompensation (“SFAS 123"), but

rather used the alternative intrinsic value method.
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Exhibit 10.24.11

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO
TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEM¥ (this “ Amendment”) is entered into as of March 28, 2006
by and between CELSION CORPORATION, a Delaware @@iion having its principal place of business@220-L Old Columbia Road,
Columbia, Maryland 21046 Celsion”) and CELSION (CANADA) LIMITED, an Ontario, Canadarporation having its principal place of
business at 10220-L Old Columbia Road, Columbiaryldad 21046 (‘Canada”) and Dr. AUGUSTINE CHEUNG, a Maryland resident (“
Cheung”). All capitalized terms that are not otherwisdided herein shall have the meanings assignedetm th the Transition Services
Agreement (as defined below).

WHEREAS, Celsion and Canada entered into thaticeFransition Services Agreement dated Januar®266 (together with all
exhibits and schedules thereto, thEransition Services Agreement) and have agreed to enter into the First Amendrtteareto, dated the
date hereof;

WHEREAS, Celsion has agreed, subject to certamgemd conditions, to loan to Canada up to TWO HBED THOUSAND and
00/100 Dollars ($200,000) (theL'ban "),

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises thie mutual agreements set forth herein, andtf@ragood and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby acknowledged, Celsion, Canada and @hHeemeby agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
AMENDMENTS TO TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

Section 1. _Amendments to Transition Serviceee@ment Subject to Celsion making the Loan to CanadaGimeling securing
such loan, the Transition Services Agreement istheby amended as follows:

1.1 SECTION 2.d is hereby deleted in its entirety amgkaded in its entirety as follow

SECTION 2.d for the shorter of the period endibgJune 30, 2006 and (2) the date of the closfregQualifying
Transaction, Celsion shall reimburse Canada foeeges reasonably incurred in connection with theraifon of its
business; provided that Canada shall submit, inra@lemce with Celsion’s policies and proceduresr@mate vouchers,
receipts or other substantiating evidence acceptabCelsion for such expenses before reimbursemiirite made
hereunder and the aggregate reimbursement undesdtiion shall not exceed three hundred thousalfetsl ($300,000)



1.2  Section 2.e will be added to the Transition Sewiggreement

SECTION 2.e any amount provided by Celsion taddka in accordance with 2.d above that in the aggeeshall exceed
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) will betarest at a rate of prime plus one per cent acld suerest will accrue
from the date the aggregate reimbursements exae=tdundred thousand dolle

1.3 SECTION 4.b is hereby deleted in its entirety amgbaded in its entirety as follow
SECTION 4.b the amount equal to all paymentsertadand on behalf of Celsion to Canada or the @afanployees
pursuant to Sections 2(c) and 2(d) plus any intexesrued under Section 2
ARTICLE Il
LOAN
Section 2.1  Subject to the terms and conditgmidorth in this Agreement, Celsion shall loarCnada up to two hundred thousand dollars
($200,000) as and when required to reimburse Cafwadapenses reasonably incurred in connectioh thi¢ operation of its business.
ARTICLE 1lI
SECURITY

Section 3.1 In consideration of the Loan disedss Articles | and Il above, in the event th&@uaalifying Transaction does not occur by
June 30, 2006 Cheung has agreed to forgo five gflyapayments each of forty thousand dollars ($d0)@ue September 18, 2006,

January 18, 2007, April 18, 2007, July 18, 2007 @adtember 18, 2007, in the aggregate amount ohtwdred thousand dollars ($200,000),
under a Consulting Services Agreement enteredsistof January 16, 2006 by and between Celsion &edi@ in payment of the loan in the
event the loan is otherwise not repaid prior to ahthe five payment dates specified under the Gling Services Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Celsion, Canada and Cheung lbaused this Amendment to be executed as of theefidsit written above k
their respective duly authorized officers thereunto

CELSION CORPORATION

By: /s/ Lawrence Olanot
Name: Lawrence Olanoff
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

CELSION (CANADA) LIMITED

By: /s/ Charles C. Sheltc
Name: Charles C. Shelton
Title: Executive Vice President/CF

DR. AUGUSTINE CHEUNC

By: /s/ Dr. Augustine Cheur




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee registration statements on Forms S-8 (Rds. 333-127045, 333-116435 and 333-
67508) and on Form S-3 (File Nos. 333-115890, 333318, 333-100638, 333-82450 and 333-64710) ofi@elSorporation (the Company )
of our report dated March 2, 2007, relating tolthéance sheets of the Company as of December 86, &t 2005, and the related statem
of operations, changes in stockholders’ (deficaiyey and cash flows for the years ended DecembgP@06, 2005 and 2004, and our report
dated March 2, 2007, relating to managensassessment of the effectiveness of internal aoower financial reporting and the effectiven
of the Company’s internal control over financigboeting as of December 31, 2006, which appearénGbmpany’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

/sl Stegman & Compar
Baltimore, Marylanc
March 26, 200°



Exhibit 31.1
CELSION CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION

I, Michael H. Tardugno, certify that:

1.
2.

(@)

(b)

(©
(d)

(@)
(b)

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Celsion Corporatior

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rule
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

Designed such internal control over financ@darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principle

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anlgave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céntrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inviedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date: March 27, 2007 /s/ Michael H. Tardugno

Michael H. Tardugnt
Chief Executive Office
Celsion Corporatiol



Exhibit 31.2
CELSION CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION

I, Anthony P. Deasey, certify that:

1.
2.

(@)

(b)

(©
(d)

(@)
(b)

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Celsion Corporatior

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigtagisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@k)) and internal controls over financial repagt(as defined in Exchange Act Ru
13e15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepal

Designed such internal control over financ@darting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principle

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registré's internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anlgave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céntrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

Any fraud, whether or not material, that inviedvmanagement or other employees who have a sgmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date: March 27, 2007 /s! Anthony P. Deasey

Anthony P. Dease
Chief Financial Office!
Celsion Corporatiol



Exhibit 32.1

CELSION CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE § 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
§ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celsion @mnation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periended December 31, 2006, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomoabout March 27, 2007 (the “Report”), |, Michbe Tardugno, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 10 LS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my

knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company

March 27, 2007 /s/ Michael H. Tardugno
Michael H. Tardugnt
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CELSION CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE § 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
§ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celsion @mnation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periended December 31, 2006, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomioabout March 27, 2007 (the “Report”), I, Antlgdh. Deasey, Chief Financial Officer
of the Company, certify, pursuant to 10 U.S.C. §0,3s adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanks+@kt of 2002, that, to my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company

March 27, 2007 /s! Anthony P. Deasey
Anthony P. Dease
Chief Financial Office!




